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STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION
EHZEAER

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of 2015 final results 24 March 2016
AGM 2016 I June 2016
Ex-dividend date for 2015 final dividend |6 June 2016

Despatch of dividend warrants on or about 30 June 2016

Announcement of 2016 interim results (tentative) August 2016

Announcement of 2016 final results (tentative) March 2017

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2016 (“AGM 2016”)

The AGM 2016 will be held on Wednesday, | June 2016. The notice of the AGM
2016, which constitutes part of the circular to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders"), is sent together with this Annual Report to Shareholders. This Annual
Report, the circular to Shareholders, the notice of the AGM 2016 and the proxy form
are also available on the Stock Exchange's website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company's website (http://www.twrl | 15.net).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining Shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM 2016:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2016

documents for registration
Closure of register of members 27 May 2016 to
I June 2016

(both dates inclusive)

Record date I June 2016

For determining Shareholders entitlement
to the final dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer 430 pm. on 17 June 2016
documents for registration
Closure of register of members 20 to 23 June 2016

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 23 June 2016

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Phone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990
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PRODUCT PROFILE
EmBEN

Er 00
TIBET GLACIER MINERAL (Z;Z?WW

WATER CO,, LTD. -
P K| iR R KB R D H] ™

Uniqueness * Purity
B - AUF

Premium glacial mineral water

SEIIE VN

High quality natural
drinking water

BERATAK




PRODUCT PROFILE

EmEN

TIBET TIANDI GREEN BEVERAGE
DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

RipgERmERERAA

Premium Tibet highland barley beer
=i faE RS R

r |
TIBET HIGHLAND NATURAL = :
WATER LIMITED = AR
AHESERAKERAT R

| 2-liter “Zhuoma Spring’ barrelled natural drinking water

2 AF BIHRIBERAKAK

“Easy Joy ¢ Zhuoma Spring’ bottled natural drinking water
[ 53 « IR IRERAFKAK

Annual Report ¢ &£ & 2015

13



TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. & FERKERERAA

14

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3401, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

WEBSITES TO ACCESS COMPANY INFORMATION*

http//www.twrl | 15.net
http://www.hkexnews.hk

STOCK CODE ON MAIN BOARD OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
115

* contents of the websites do not form part in this Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
IFERESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Tibet Water Resources Ltd. (the “Company”;
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to

present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 3|
December 2015.

This is my first annual report since being appointed as Chairman of the board (the “Board")
of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company. | would like to take this opportunity to
thank Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace, former Chairman of the Board, for all of his hard work,
commitment and contribution made to the Group during his tenure. Since 201 I, | have
served as an independent non-executive director of the Board, and it is my great honor
to be appointed as Chairman of the Board during the year. In 2015, the Group continued
to diversify and expand its business, and officially changed the name of the Company to
Tibet Water Resources Ltd. to reflect this ongoing diversification. | firmly believe that our
management team, with its global managerial and marketing experience, will successfully
lead the Group in actively expanding its business scale, consolidating its leading market
position and extending the availability of quality water and related products from Tibet in-

and outside China.

OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

The Group is delighted to announce that our 2015 performance was encouraging in terms
of operational results. Alongside recording a positive performance, we also laid a solid
foundation for future development. Our current overall strategy is to gear our operations
towards a diversified product portfolio in response to different levels of market needs.
Given the current backdrop of consumption upgrades in China, our goal is to provide

customers with quality water products from Tibet at various price segments.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETERES

Tibet 5100 Glacial Spring Water (“5100 Glacial Water") continues to be the Group's
flagship line, and its latest high-end “Diamond Series” products have been launched in
both glass bottled and PET bottled packaging. The Diamond Series, which was able to
successfully build market recognition during the year, is mainly targeted at high-class
restaurants and multi-star hotels. Another product that we introduced during the year
was our [0L 5100 family soft barrelled water, which was produced to cater to family and
office demand. Also, at the start of 2016 we rolled out our new product, “Gesang Spring’,
aimed at reaching a broader market. We expect this product to boost sales and fulfill

unmet demand in the market for superior Tibet water at an affordable price.

As for our brewing business, our highland barley beer was able to successfully consolidate
its foothold in the high-end beer market in the Tibet Autonomous Region. Both its
revenue and profit in 2015 saw stable growth, leaving gross margin at industry high level.
We plan to further expand our sales of highland barley beer throughout the country in
the future.

Zhuoma Spring Water, produced by Tibet Highland Natural Water Limited in which the
Company holds 33% stock, achieved rapid growth in 2015. We continued to sell “Easy
Joy Zhuoma Spring Bottled Water” in Easy Joy convenience stores at Sinopec gas stations
throughout China, and the product has become increasingly popular. This associate
company also sells |2L barreled water packaged with foldable PET materials under the
brand “Zhuoma Spring” with a unique membership-based marketing model, and it was

able to further penetrate the family water market during 2015.

OUR SALES CHANNELS

In 2015, the Group continued to enhance cooperative initiatives with various strategic
partners. Thanks to our strategic agreements with PetroChina and Sinopec Group, our
products have gradually made their way into convenience stores at their gas stations
across the country. Also, our cooperation with Huimin.cn will allow us to win retailing
market for our “Gesang Spring” through its convenient stores in communities. Most
recently, we signed a strategic cooperation framework agreement with China Property
Management Association to explore possible channels to develop community customers

and more “strategic partnerships” are in the pipeline.

TP A 78 55100k )1 38 R 2K (51007 Il
KBEEER  FHETHEEREARHE
HOEARIER BREEBLEEMRR
PETHREE RIZTafRBEMERBE
HE - EESX I TISHRA - KM 107
SIOREREMAKMERBEL - KRR
MEREMBRARPHEERKER - ZZ
—AE BMAELETRAMBRRINEN
Em EUREEATHEE  HENHREDH
BRNEENABKREVRREHE B
PASEEHAREETISHEL o

E@E%%ﬁ@’ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬂ&
AR B E SRS EMISER T
—ﬁi%%kﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ¥%'%ﬂ$%%
ETESMU  RRBETAZENS - w5
EBNERX -

ERRIZRIBEHMERAERERRAKER
NN EBR I E_S—RENRTRE
#E - HNRESE 2B REBETTR
E2BMBIENSEENELHEE  BES

Bl Ze  rm 2B R]ME L&
PETREKABEBENGEFIEHE  #
—HBE T KERRAKTE o

RMMEERE

AEE  AEEE-ZRBAEBHNAE
HBER - BE BARBMESLHE  Fh
ERERIT A EHR  RMANERSHLE
Liﬁﬁ$6ﬁ\¢EkL%élﬁmmm
HUEERE - APTEERBREFAAE -
ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁ?%%ﬁ@@ﬂ%’%@ﬁ%
HEMBRRANTEMS - &I KAIED
EMEERHERI] T BRAFERRBZ
RORZEEE ) EAFPATRE  ML¥E
iR E % B RS SRR



Over the past two years, we have developed a strong sales force as well as a seasoned
management team, and our relentless efforts, together with help from our distributors,
have taken our retailing business to a whole new level. Aside from maintaining our
competitiveness in traditional channels, the Group has further explored business
opportunities in intemational chain supermarkets, high-end restaurants, multi-star hotels,
famous cinemas and airports. This will not only generate new sales for the Group, but also

build our good brand image.

In early 2016, the Group reached a new milestone by launching its 5100 Glacial Water
for sale in Hong Kong. This is the first time the Group has expanded its offerings outside
of mainland China, and we are determined to build our brand in Hong Kong, a major
international financial center, which could be a stepping stone for us to develop more

overseas markets.

OUR MARKETING STRATEGY

While strengthening its distribution channels, the Group also implemented various
marketing strategies in 2015 to strengthen brand recognition and expand targeted
customer outreach. Famous Chinese singer-songwriter Mr. LI Jian endorsed our products
as an ambassador, reinforcing our brand image of health, purity and elegance. From late
2015 on, our products have increased exposure through popular shows. For example, we
sponsored Zhejiang Satellite TV's popular entertainment show “Hidden Singer” in return
for a naming right for our “5100 Gesang Spring” product, and sponsored the online family
show “Help from Moms" on video streaming site Youku Tudou with our “5100 Glacial
Water". Both shows were able to help our two products gain significant exposure on
the market. Concurrently, we also continued to maintain a high level of exposure for our

products in high-end golf tournaments in China in 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETERES

OUR SOCIETY RESPONSIBILITY

We have always adhered to the principles of strong social responsibility in all aspects of
our business and to balance corporate growth with regional economic development. We
are dedicated to maintaining the culture and improving the quality of life for the people
of Tibet. In 2015, we also continued to emphasize the importance of the protection of
our water source and environment as well as and quality control. Our plants are built and
operated in an environmentally friendly way with due respect to the pristine environment
in which we operate. Our extraction of water will always be kept at levels with no
negative impact on the water flow from the sources and the surrounding environment for
purpose of sustainable development. In this connection, we also participated in a number
of water conservation and poverty relief charity activities, being continuously committed

to protecting the environment and giving back to the community.

OUR POLICY SUPPORT

Lastly, I would like to share the latest policy of the Tibet Autonomous Region Government
with all our Shareholders. In 2015, the Tibet Autonomous Region Government designated
the natural drinking water industry as a strategic pillar industry for Tibet's economic
development, and Tibet is set to become a key natural drinking water source for China.
According to the plan, in the foreseeable future, the natural drinking water industry in
Tibet is expected to grow by more than ten times in size. The Group's main subsidiaries
and associated companies are currently the top drinking water production and sales
enterprises in the Tibet Autonomous Region. We will leverage this market position to
actively seize new opportunities brought by this policy in order to continue delivering

sustainable growth and realize our vision of “sharing Tibet water with the whole world",

PROSPECT

Our new products and markets will be further expanded and be supported by an
adequate level of sales and markets activities in 2016. While continuing to implement
the abovementioned strategies and actively strengthen the integration of our existing
resources in both our mineral water business segment and highland barley beer business
segment, and to generate further synergy between these businesses, the Group will
continue to exploit its position as the leading Tibet water resource company and to
seek for new projects within the Chinese specialty beverage industry, leading to further

diversification of our business and products.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to the management team
and all the employees for their contribution and hard work over the past year. | would
also like to thank our Shareholders, investors, and business partners for their support over

the years. We look forward to achieving another year of positive performance in 2016.

Jesper Bjoern MADSEN

Chairman

24 March 2016
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

2015 2014 Change
— —T-F 2
Revenue (RMB million) WAANEBEET) 832 773 1 8%
Profit attributable to the owners AREHEB AREFE
of the Company (RMB million) (AE¥BE&ET) 277 343 | 19%
Eamings per share FREM
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) - EXREE(ARED) 10.78 13.37 | 19%
Sales Volume (in tonnes) HEZ(E) 11,512 116,577 | 4%
Gross profit margin ENES 60.3% 62.7% | 4%
Average selling price per tonne (RMB'000)  FI9EMEEB(ARETT) 7.0 66 1 6%
As at 3| December
Rt+=HA=+—H
2015 2014
—F-1% —FmF
(RMB million) (RMB million) Change
(AR®BEER) (AR%B&ET) 25
Total assets BEEE 3,660 3436 1 7%
Equity attributable
to owners of the Company RATHE ANELER 2,878 2678 1 7%




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
EEEFWEDT M

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2015, we continued our endeavors in supplying high quality products and premium

services to our customers,

Despite facing stronger competition and a more challenging economic environment in
2015, in which in particular premium products in general suffer, the Group was able to
maintain its total sales volume in 2015 at a level slightly below that of 2014 down 4%, and
to maintain the share of total revenue for our retail distribution channel of our bottled

water products in our mineral water business segment at a level above 50%.

The share of our 5100 Glacial Water bottled water redemption card business of the total
revenue of our bottled water products in our mineral water business segment in 2015

was 0%, and continued to be one of our important sources of profit.

As at 31 December 2015, the geographical coverage of our third party retail sales channel
of our mineral water business segment covered | 12 cities, and the numbers of distributors

and sales outlets were 268 and 8,763, respectively.

In 2015, the share of total revenue of our highland barley beer business segment within

and outside of the Tibet Autonomous Region was 98% and 2%, respectively.
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On 30 June 2014, the Group entered into a procurement agreement with China Railway
Express Co,, Ltd. ("CRE"), the term of such agreement was for a period of one year
between | July 2014 and 30 June 2015. This agreement expired on 30 June 2015. The
management of the Group has been exploring with companies within the China Railway

Group on possible future co-operation opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2015, total sales of the Group amounted to RMB832 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB59 million or 8% from the total sales of the Group of RMB773
million in 2014.

Because of the optimization of our customer mix and an overall decrease in raw material
costs, the gross profit margin of our bottled water products in our mineral water business
segment has further increased in 2015, despite the overall gross margin ratio in our
mineral water business segment was pull down from 78.4% in 2014 to 73.5% in 2015 due
to the performance in its non-core business. Besides, due to the optimization of our beer
product mix and an increase in production volume, the gross profit margin of our highland
barley beer business segment has also increased from 41.6% in 2014 to 45.5% in 2015. In
2015, because of the increase in the share of our highland beer business segment, which
has a comparatively lower gross margin ratio than that of our mineral water business
segment, the overall gross profit margin of the Group has dropped from 62.7% in 2014 to
60.3% in 2015.

REVENUE

In 2015, total sales of RMB832 million of the Group consisted of (i) the revenue generated
from the sales of our mineral water business segment in the amount of RMB441 million,
representing a slight decrease of less than 1% from the sales of RMB443 million in 2014,
and (ii) the revenue generated from our highland barley beer business segment in the
amount of RMB392 million, representing an increase of 19% from the sales of RMB330
million in 2014.

In 2015, the sales of bottled mineral water to CRE accounted for 7% of the total sales of
the Group of RMB832 million.
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The average selling price of our mineral water products increased from RMB7,124 per
tonne in 2014 to RMB7,927 per tonne in 2015. Such an increase was mainly attributable
to a change in our customer mix. Besides, the average selling price of our highland barley
beer products increased from RMB6,059 per tonne in 2014 to RMB6,272 per tonne in
2015. Such an increase was mainly attributable to the optimization of our beer product
mix. The above-mentioned changes in average selling prices led to an overall increase
in the total average selling price of our mineral water products and highland barley beer
products from RMB6,627 per tonne in 2014 to RMB7,000 per tonne in 2015.

SALES VOLUME

In 2015, the total sales volume of the Group amounted to | 11,512 tonnes, consisted of
49,045 tonnes in our mineral water business segment and 62,467 tonnes in our highland
barley beer business segment, representing a slight decrease of 4% compared to the total

sales volume of | 16,577 tonnes in 2014.

However, in 2015, the total sales volume generated from non-CRE institutional clients and
traditional third party retail operation channels increased by 6,059 tonnes from 86,426
tonnes in 2014 to 92,485 tonnes in 2015, representing a year-on-year increase of 7%,

mainly driven by the sales growth of our highland barley beer business segment.

In respect of our mineral water business segment, sales volume of bottled mineral water
supplied to CRE in 2015 amounted to 18,917 tonnes, representing a decrease of 11,234
tonnes compared to the sales volume of 30,151 tonnes in 2014, due to the expiry of the

procurement agreement with CRE on 30 June 2015.
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OTHER NET GAINS

Other net gains mainly included government grants. In addition to these government
grants, other net gains included gains on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
(“AFS"). The overall decrease in other net gains of RMB 127 million was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the overall government grants from RMB 154 million in 2014 to RMB38

million in 2015, and the decrease in gains on disposal of AFS of RMBI | million.

As our main production processes are carried out in Tibet, we enjoy relevant government
grants from time to time. The amount of grants we received from the government of
Tibet was mainly calculated with reference to our fiscal contribution to the local economic

development as a major tax payer and employer in Tibet.
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In November 2014, the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") government issued
a notice requesting for a revisit of certain subsidy policies implemented by local
governments. Accordingly, the Tibet local government revisited relevant subsidy policies
and postponed the approval and payment of government grants to the Group. In May
2015, the PRC government issued another notice for resuming the government subsidy
policies that have been implemented by local governments, and if those policies have
prescribed periods, the government grant contracts signed by the local governments with
enterprises should still be valid. Accordingly, as the relevant government grants contracts
of the Group have prescribed periods, these contracts will continue to be valid during
their respective contract periods. The relevant approval and payment of government

grants to the Group has been resuming gradually since December 2015.
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SHARE OF POST-TAX PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

The share of post-tax profits of associates mainly included the share of post-tax profit of
Tibet Highland Natural Water Limited (“Highland Natural Water”). The Group acquired
20% equity interests in Highland Natural Water on 5 November 2014 and subsequently
acquired an additional |3% equity interests in Highland Natural Water on 29 January
2015. In 2015, the Group's ownership of equity interests in Highland Natural Water
has generated a share of the post-tax profits of an associate in the amount of RMB2|
million. The sales volume and revenue in respect of Highland Natural Water in 2015
were approximately 103,069 tonnes and RMB297 million, respectively, and which were

accounted for using the equity method.

FINANCE NET COST

In 2015, finance net cost of RMBI0 million included finance income of RMBI0 million and
finance costs of RMB20 million. This represents a decrease of RMB4 million in finance
income and an increase of approximately RMBIO million in finance costs, compared
to RMBI14 million and RMBI0 million in 2014, respectively. Such a decrease of finance
income was mainly attributable to the decrease in interest income of RMB4 million and
the increase of finance costs was mainly attributable to the increase of exchange losses of

RMB4 million and the increase of interest costs of RMB6 million.

INCOME TAX CHARGE

The income tax charge of the Group decreased by RMB29 million or 36% from RMB8|
million in 2014 to RMB52 million in 2015. The effective tax rate of 2015 and 2014 was
13.8% and 17.4%, respectively. Such a decrease in the effective tax rate was mainly
because the tax rate applicable to entities in Tibet Autonomous Region of the PRC
decreased from 5% to 9%, after deducting the impact attributable to the increase in the
amount of withholding tax of RMB5 million incurred from the proposed distributing profit

from PRC subsidiaries to their overseas holding companies.
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

On operational level, the result in 2015 has improved with an increase in the gross profit
of RMBI8 million resulting from further optimizing our product and customer mix. Besides,
the improved result was also attributable to an increase in the share of post-tax profits
of associates of RMB20 million, a decrease of selling and distribution expenses of RMB6
million mainly due to the decrease in transportation expenses, a decrease in administration
expenses of RMB7 million and a decrease in the effective tax rate, compared to 2014.

However, as a result of the decrease in other net gains of RMB127 million mainly due to
reduction in government grants of RMBI 16 million, and the increase in finance net cost
of RMBI14 million, the net profit of the Group overall decreased from RMB385 million in
2014 to RMB323 million in 2015.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by RMB66 million, or 19%, from
approximately RMB343 million in 2014 to RMB277 million in 2015, which was in line with
the decrease in net profits, after deducting the non-controlling interest of RMB46 million
in Tiandi Green Beverage Development Co,, Ltd. (“Tiandi Green") during the relevant
reporting period.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2015, investment in associates of the Group amounted to RMBI,063
million, compared to RMB60 1 million as at 31 December 2014. After the Group acquired
20% equity interest in Highland Natural Water on 5 November 2014, the Group acquired
an additional 3% equity interests in Highland Natural Water with cash consideration
of RMB390 million on 29 January 2015. Besides, in July 2015, the Group and China
Kweichow Moutai Winery (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Kweichow Moutai") jointly established
a company — Moutai Group Tibet 5100 Mineral Water Co,, Ltd. ("Moutai 5100"). The
registered share capital of this company is RMBI100 million, with each party contributing
50% of the equity shares. The main business of this company is distribution of barrelled
water products. The increase in investment in associates of approximately RMB462 million
was mainly attributable to such investments.
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As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of the Group amounted to RMB205 million
compared to RMB332 million as at 31 December 2014. Among the trade receivables of
RMB205 million, there was a decrease in the accumulated amount due from a customer
of the Group from RMB289 million as at 3| December 2014 to RMBI54 million as at
31 December 2015, of which RMB70 million had been further collected on or before 24
March 2016. As at 24 March 2016, trade receivables as at 3| December 2015 of RMBI3
million aged over | year, but within 2 years, and RMB71| million aged within | year from

such customer.

In view of the decrease in the trade receivables from such customer as a proportion of
the total trade receivables of the Group, and taking into account the history of business
dealings, and the strategic business relationship with such customer, the Group considers
that there is no objective evidence of an impairment loss to the trade receivable due from
such customer. The Group also expects to receive further sums of moneys from such

customer before the end of December 2016 as settlement of its trade receivables.
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There has never been any write-off on the trade receivable due from such customer in
the past. Moreover, the Group maintains regular contact with our major debtors through
meetings and telephone conversations to understand the status of their operations, their
continuing business needs and ways in which the Group can improve its services. During
such meetings and conversations, the Group is not aware of any material circumstances
indicating any problems in recovering its trade receivables from its major debtors. As a

result, no trade receivable was impaired and provided for as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, prepayments (including current and non-current) of the Group
increased to RMB28 million from RMB2| million as at 31 December 2014. The increase
was mainly attributable to an increase of RMBI million of prepaid value added tax and an
increase of RMB6 million of prepayment made for purchase of raw materials, services and

equipment.
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As at 31 December 2015, prepaid enterprise income tax of the Group decreased to
RMBII million from RMBI5 million as at 31 December 2014. Comparing to 2015, it
was mainly because most of the first quarter enterprise income tax payable of 2015 was

prepaid in the fourth quarter of 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, other receivables and other assets (including current and non-
current) of the Group amounted to RMB88 million compared to RMB44 million as at 31
December 2014. The amount due from an associate increased by RMBI9 million and the
amount due from third parties increased by RMB32 million, mainly leading to an overall

increase in the total amount of other receivables and other assets.

As at 31 December 2015, inventories of the Group amounted to RMB73 million
compared to RMB65 million as at 31 December 2014. The increase was mainly

attributable to an increase in raw material inventories.

As at 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
RMB628 million compared to RMB763 million as at 31 December 2014. After deducting
the impact of RMB449 million brought by the cash and cash equivalents generated from
operations, the decrease was mainly attributable to payments of RMB440 million made for
acquiring the 13% equity interests of Highland Natural Water and for contributing 50% of
equity shares of Moutai 5100, and the payment of dividends of RMB8 | million in 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, deferred revenue and advances received from customers
(including current and non-current) of the Group amounted to RMB67 million compared
to RMB91 million as at 31 December 2014. Deferred revenue decreased by RMBI2
million and advances received from customers decreased by RMBI2 million, mainly leading
to an overall decrease in the total amount of deferred revenue and advances received

from customers.
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As at 31 December 2015, trade payables of the Group amounted to RMB73 million
compared to RMBI 17 million as at 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly

attributable to the decrease in the payables for transportation costs incurred.

As at 31 December 2015, enterprise income tax payable of the Group was RMB2 | million
compared to no such payable as at 31 December 2014. It was mainly because the fourth

quarter enterprise income tax payable of 2014 was settled in 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, accruals and other payables of the Group amounted to RMB65
million compared to RMB50 million as at 31 December 2014. Such an increase was mainly

attributable to the increase in other payable for the purchase of equipment.

As at 31 December 2015 and as at 31 December 2014, borrowings (including current
and non-current) of the Group amounted to RMB200 million and RMBI91 million,

respectively.

The Group's net current assets and net assets as at 31 December 2015 were RMB622
million and RMB3,197 million, respectively, and net current assets and net assets as at
31 December 2014 were RMB894 million and RMB2,951 million, respectively. Although
having significant eamings of RMB323 million in 2015, the net current assets nonetheless
decreased, which was mainly attributable to the increase of current borrowings of
RMB100 million, the payment of dividends of RMB8I million, and the payments of
RMB390 million and RMB50 million for acquiring 3% equity interest in Highland Natural
Water and for contributing 50% of equity shares of Moutai 5100, respectively. Regarding
the increase in net assets, considering the Group's payment of dividends of RMB8| million

in 2015, the increase in net assets was mainly attributable to the eamings of 2015,
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of employees for the Group was
approximately 507 compared to 442 as at 3| December 2014. Relevant staff cost was
RMB77 million in 2015, while our staff cost was RMB64 million in 2014. The Group's
remuneration policies are formulated according to the duty, experience, ability and
performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to other benefits including social insurance contribution, employee

provident fund schemes and discretionary incentive.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. The total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus borrowings. As at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was 5.9 %
and 6.1%, respectively.
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MERGER AND ACQUISITION

After the Group acquired 20% equity interest in Highland Natural Water on 5 November
2014, the Group acquired an additional 13% equity interests in Highland Natural Water
with cash consideration of RMB390 million on 29 January 2015. Together with the 20%
equity interest acquired in November 2014, the Group owned 33% equity shares of
Highland Natural Water after that additional acquisition. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 29 January 2015 for further details.

Besides, in July 2015, the Group and Kweichow Moutai jointly established a company
— Moutai 5100. The registered share capital of this company is RMBI00 million, with
each party contributing 50% of the equity shares. The main business of this company is

distribution of barrelled water products.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

In 2015, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB48
million (in 2014: approximately RMBI7 million). Regarding the future development and
outlook of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Outlook” in this MD&A.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material

capital commitments.

CHARGES
As at 31 December 2015 and 3| December 2014, the Group did not have any asset

charges.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided a financial guarantee to an associate amounting to RMB260 million as
at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: nil). The guarantee was provided for a bank
borrowing of the associate with the principal amount of RMB240 million; the period of

guarantee is from 20 July 2015 to 20 July 2017.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as far as the Company is aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 22 January 2016, the Group entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Tyee Capital Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Investor”),
whereby the Group agreed to issue and the Investor agreed to subscribe convertible
bonds maturing on the third anniversary date from the issue date of the convertible bonds
at the interest rate at 6.00% per annum, provided that certain precedent conditions are
met. On 31 March 2016, the Company and the Investor entered into an amended and
restated subscription agreement, whereby the parties agreed to amend and restate the
Subscription Agreement to reflect changes to certain terms of the Subscription Agreement

and the bond instrument.
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The major amendments to the Subscription Agreement are: (i) the principal amount of
the bonds being decreased from HK$600,000,000 to HK$525,000,000; (i) the further
extension of the Long Stop Date to 30 June 2016 (or such later date as the Company and
the Investor may agree in writing from time to time); (iii) the adjustment to the conversion
price to HK$3.50 per share; (iv) the Company providing a share charge as security for
the bonds; and (v) the compensation for the default by the Investor being increased from
Hk$6,000,000 to HK$12,000,000. Please refer to the Company's announcements dated
22 January 2016, 22 March 2016 and 31 March 2016 for further details.

As of 24 March 2016, the convertible bonds have not been issued by the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group adopts a conservative approach to cash management and risk control. The
Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of its business transactions denominated
in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from exposure of HKD
against RMB. The Group has not used any forward contracts or currency borrowings to
hedge its foreign exchange risk. Cash was generally placed in short-term deposits and term

deposits denominated in HKD and RMB.
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VALUATION OF PROPERTIES

For the purpose of listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) on 30 June 2011, a valuation
was conducted on the property interests held by the Group. However, those property
interests were still carried at historical costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,

if any, on the Group's financial statements.

With reference to the property valuation set out in note 4 of Appendix II-A of the
Company's prospectus dated 20 June 2011, a revaluation surplus of approximately
RMB3,947,000 was identified in respect of the property interests of the Group as at 31
March 201 1. If the property of the Group were stated at that valuation, the depreciation

charge per annum would increase by approximately RMB130,000.

MINING LICENSE

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 10 August 2015 in
relation to the commencement of the application process for renewal or extension of
the mining license for our water source of the Group. The Group has completed the
application process for the renewal of such mining license according to the relevant
requirements. The mining license was renewed and will expire in September 2020. In
addition, the Group will continue to search for potential opportunities to acquire new

water sources.

PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The annual water production capacity and annual beer production capacity for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are approximately 238,000 tonnes and 200,000 tonnes,
respectively (for the year ended 31 December 2014: approximately 238,000 tonnes and
200,000 tonnes, respectively). Besides, an annual production capacity amounting 60,000

tonnes is expected to be put into use in 2016.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
30 June 201 | with net proceeds from the global offering of approximately HKD 1,472
million (including proceeds from the exercise of over-allotment option and after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). On 10 April 2013, the Company
resolved to change the usage of the net proceeds from the global offering. Please refer to
the Company's announcement dated 10 April 2013 for details. The revised usage of the

net proceeds has been allocated and has been partially utilized in the following manner:
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As at

31 December

As at

31 December

2015 2015
Utilized Unutilized
Revised net proceeds net proceeds
usageof R-ZE—HFE R=-B-1F
net proceeds +=A +=A
g 3 =t—H =t—H
Fri& R EERAN RERM
REAR  BRERE  ENEFRR
HKD Million HKD Million HKD Million
BERET BEET BEET
Expand our production capacity by AERRIEHE &
constructing additional facilities BERINEERB
and purchasing additional DA R AR
production equipment 133 55 78
Expand our distribution network and RAERREHAEE K
toward promotional activities SEEREEE 206 17 189
Mergers and acquisitions that RIERARIMRB XS
complement our existing business B & OF U RS 1,092 1,092 —
Working capital and other RELEET R
general corporate purpose Hit—MeERE 4 4 —
1,472 1,206 266

Up to 31 December 2015, the Group has utilized net proceeds amounting to HKD55
million, HKD 17 million, HKD 1,092 million and HKD4!| million (i) for expanding our
production capacity; (i) for expanding our distribution network and towards promotional
activities; (iii) for mergers and acquisitions that complement our existing business; and (iv)
as working capital and for other general corporate purposes, respectively. The remaining

net proceeds were deposited in reputable financial institutions.
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OUTLOOK

Along with the development of the Group throughout the past 10 years, consumer

awareness and recognition of the “Tibet Water Trend" have been ever-increasing.

In 2016, the Group shall continue to maintain close cooperation with its distributors and
devote more resources to develop our third party retail sales network, including six major
distribution channels, namely (i) department stores and supermarkets; (i) hotels; (iii) high-
end restaurants; (iv) entertainment venues such as night clubs and bars; (v) golf clubs
and private clubs; and (vi) others, including cinemas, specialty shops at airport and tourist

attractions etc, across different regions in the PRC to promote our products.

The Group will also continue to expand its distribution network both by exploring new
markets and by increasing the number of distributors as mentioned above, as well as
through strategic partnerships with Sinopec Group, Moutai Group and other relevant

business partners which are expected to significantly strengthen the business of Group.
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Moreover, the Group will continue to develop new products and sales channels primarily

by exploring the Tibet sourcing opportunities.

With the growing potential in the home and office user markets, barrelled water
products has been launched for such market segments in the second half of 2015. In this
connection, the Group will cooperate seamlessly with our strategic partners and local

communities for further exploring these opportunities.

In 2015, the Group launched its premium version of 5100 Glacial Water named as
"Diamond Series” product, with potential for export. In line with this strategy, in addition
to the mainland China market, this Diamond Series product has been exported to the

Hong Kong market through a distributor since 2016.
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For further strengthening our product portfolio and targeting a larger consumer group, the
Group has also in 2016 launched a medium priced bottled mineral water products under

the brand of “Gesang Spring”.

The above mentioned new products and markets will be further expanded and be

supported by an adequate level of sales and markets activities in 2016.

While continuing to implement the abovementioned strategies and actively strengthen
the integration of our existing resources in both our mineral water business segment
and highland barley beer business segment, and to generate further synergy between the
mineral water business and the highland barley beer business, the Group will continue to
seek for new projects with a business presence in the Chinese specialty beverage industry,

leading to the diversification of our business and products.

In recognition of the importance of the ongoing projects, the Group will give high priority

to continuously strengthen its work force both qualitatively and quantitatively.

The Group continues to expect strong competition and a challenging economic
environment, but will nonetheless adhere to its objective to produce, supply and further
grow its premium mineral water products and highland barley beer products in China and

in potential overseas markets.
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Executive Directors

Mr. FU Lin, aged 50, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and was appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Mr. Fu has over 22
years of experience in business and capital operation and is responsible for the overall
management, business and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Fu graduated from
Peking University (3L R KZ) with a bachelor degree in Economics. Mr. Fu studied at
the Graduates School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (FF BItL & FHE7) and
was awarded with a master degree in Economics; Mr. Fu also attended an advanced
management program at Harvard Business School, which focused on skills in leading an

organization.

Mr. YUE Zhigiang, aged 51, is an executive Director of our Company and was appointed
to the Board on | March 2011. Mr. Yue has over 28 years of experience in mechanical
engineering and manufacturing plant operation, and is the general manager of our
subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd. Mr. Yue studied at Shandong
University of Technology (II T2 K2) (now combined into Shandong University
(LIBA2)) in Machinery Production and obtained a bachelor degree. Mr. Yue was
appointed as the director of Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012.

Mr. LIU Chen, aged 32, is an executive Director and authorized representative of our
Company and was appointed to the Board on | March 201 I. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Liu gained experience in the areas of law and accounting. Mr. Liu graduated from
York University, Canada, with a bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Liu also studied full-time at

McMaster University, Canada, and obtained a master degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. WONG Hak Kun, aged 60, is an executive Director of our Company and was
appointed to the Board on 8 December 2014. He worked for Carlsberg Brewery prior
to joining the Company. He was the Chairman of Carlsberg China from September 201 |
to March 2014. He served as the chief executive officer of Carlsberg Greater China from
March 2007 to September 2011, and as the deputy managing director of Carlsberg China
from January 2006 to February 2007. During the period between 2002 and 2006, in his
capacity of business development director of Carlsberg China, he led the merger and
acquisition team in expanding the company's production bases in the PRC. Mr. Wong has
more than 32 years of working experience in the fast-moving consumer goods industry, of
which more than 27 years were in the China beverage market. During the said period, he
held various senior management positions in top international beer companies including

Carlsberg and Bass Brewers.

Mr. Wong graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now Hong Kong Baptist
University) in 1978 with a Diploma in Business Management and received a Master of

Business Administration degree (full time) from Bath University, United Kingdom in 2001.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. JIANG Xiaohong, aged 58, is a non-executive Director of our Company and was
appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Ms. Jiang is also the vice general manager of
our subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd,, and is responsible for the
operation, quality control, equipment and production site management. She has over 28
years of experience in operational management. She graduated from Xinjiang Vocational
University (375288 T X Z) with a diploma in Economic Management, then from Jiangnan
University (TFAZE) (formerly known as Wuxi University of Light Industry (538 T
RE2) with a diploma of Brewery Engineering, and from Xinjiang University (¥758 A 22%)
with diploma of Analytical Chemistry.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN, aged 62, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He is the
chairman of the nomination committee and also a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of our Company. Mr. Madsen was appointed as chairman of the

board of Director of the Company on 7 July 2015.
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Mr. Madsen has been working with the Carlsberg A/S Group for over 22 years. He has
had the positions as the vice president responsible for overseas investments and markets,
general manager and managing director of Carlsberg Brewery Hong Kong Ltd and Chief
Operating Officer of Carlsberg Asia Pte Ltd. Mr. Madsen was the senior vice president of
Carlsberg Breweries A/S with responsibility for Asia, among other markets. Mr. Madsen
was during his tenure as the said senior president also a non-executive chairman, non-
executive vice chairman or non-executive director in a number of Carlsberg's subsidiaries
in Asia. Mr. Madsen obtained a master degree in Law from Copenhagen University,
Denmark and later studied Scottish/English Law at the University of Edinburgh, Scotland.

Mr. Madsen currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of D&O
Green Technologies Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia (stock
code: 7204).

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai, aged 61, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and also a member of the audit committee and

nomination committee of our Company.

Mr. Lee served as a partner of Emst & Young for many years and held key leadership
positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, the Association of Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee
was appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Hunan Province (F BIHRE BIHZ B) in China since 2007. Mr. Lee received a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Business Studies from Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston
Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate diploma in Business from

Curtin University of Technology in Australia.
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Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following FPRERRBEESRONEREMDE LT

companies listed in Hong Kong and China:

MARIMBLIFRITES T :

Name of Listed Company Stock Code Place of Listing
LHAEER BRAB SR LR
Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 951 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HBEE N ERERLQE BBBRPTER
China Greenland Rundong Auto Group Limited 1365 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RESMER TEEERRAF BBBRPTER
China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. 117 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RERRBRERERER QA BB ER
CITIC Securities Company Limited 6030 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PEEFROARAF BBBRPTER
600030 Shanghai Stock Exchange

LBEFRZ S
GCL New Energy Holdings Limited 451 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HEHRERERAR LA BBBRPTER
GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings Limited 493 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BXEHERERAT BBB R PTER
NVC Lighting Holding Limited 2222 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ELRAERARLDA BBB P ER
West China Cement Limited 2233 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
REIREABER AR BBB P ER
WH Group Limited 288 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BMNEBRERAF BBB R PTER
Yashili International Holdings Ltd 1230 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
L RBERERAR DA BBB R PTER

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI, aged 48, joined our Group and was appointed as an independent BREE 485 R-_E——F=H—H
non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He is the chairman of the MAREENREZEARRRABIULINTE
audit committee and also a member of the remuneration committee and nomination B BARKANREZZESTFE  NAEFMH

committee of our Company.
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Mr. Wei is currently a managing partner of a corporate finance advisory firm. Mr. Wei
has served as chief financial officer from December 2007 to September 2013 of IFM
Investments Limited which is a real estate services company headquartered in Beijing.
From 2006 to 2007, Mr. Wei served as the chief financial officer of a Chinese solar
company listed on Nasdag. From 1999 to 2005, Mr. Wei worked in the internal audit and
risk management functions with Asia Pacific regional or global coverage for multinational
companies including LG Philips Displays International Ltd. (2003 to 2005) headquartered
in Hong Kong. From 1991 to 1999, Mr. Wei worked with KPMG LLP and Deloitte
Touche LLP in various audit and consulting roles between United States of America
and China. Mr. Wei graduated from Central Washington University in 1991, where
he received his bachelor's degree (cum laude) with a double major in accounting and
business administration. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountant.

Mr. Wei currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of Wisdom
Sports Group (stock code: 1661) and Nexteer Automotive Group Limited (stock code:
[316), both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

So far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors have any relationship (including

financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with each other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERERE

The Board now presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's annual report

for the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices to enhance Shareholders' value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests.
Accordingly, the Board has considered carefully the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and as described below,

has taken actions to further enhance corporate transparency and accountability.

The Board believes good corporate governance is one of the critical factors for achieving
sustainable long-term success. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize on the importance of a quality Board and its accountability to Shareholders.
The Board regularly reviews the corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the principles and code provisions as set out from time to time in the CG Code and

maintain the long-term health of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the code provisions set

out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board leads and supervises the overall direction and development of the Group's
business and affairs, with the objective of enhancing Shareholders’ value including
making and approving the Company's strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group's financial performance and developing and reviewing
the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance. The Directors are responsible
for, and has also delegated the chief executive officer the authority and responsibility to
oversee, the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established three Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees

various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of references.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of eight Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors.

EES4AR

RAHBENERY  EF2REN\EKE
BROANITES  —RIIFWTESR=A
BUFRTES

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer) LA (7T EE)

Mr. YUE Zhigiang EHmEE

Mr. LIU Chen AREE

Mr. WONG Hak Kun In®rst

Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. JIANG Xiaohong ZEITa+

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUKHTES

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN (Chairman) BRMBEE(FE)

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FREEE

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI FREAE

There are three Board committees in the Company. The table below provides the ARAEFERU=HZEE - TREMHRS

constituents of each of the committees. EEgNEEELTE SR AEENEA -

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee
ENEES FHEES REZES

Mr. FU Lin (NE Pt M M

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BEMS % M M C

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FHRERE M C M

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI BIRK St & C M M

Notes: Bisr

C Chairman of the relevant Board committees C BHZEENER

M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHLZEEHKE



The list of Directors and their role and function is available at the Company's and the
Stock Exchange's websites. Their profiles are set out in the section headed "Profile of

Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report on pages 46 to 50.

Following the resignation of Ms. Mou Chunhua and Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace as Director on
29 August 2015 and 6 October 2015 respectively, the Company had eight directors, of
which three were independent non-executive directors, and had in compliance with the

requirements under Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under the code provision A2.| of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Company are
separate and are assumed by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace/Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen and Mr. Fu
Lin, respectively. The Chairman'’s primary responsibilities include deciding on the meeting
schedule and agenda, formulating Board policies, ensuring Board effectiveness, promoting
the Company and upholding the Company's corporate governance standards. The Chief
Executive has delegated authority from, and is responsible to, the Board for managing the
Group's business, including the implementation of the strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Board.

Operation of the Board

All the executive Directors are responsible for dealing with the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the Listing
Rules. All Directors (including non-executive Director and independent non-executive

Directors) have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the Group, including
convening Shareholders’ meetings, reporting their work in the Shareholders’ meeting,
implementing the Shareholders' resolutions, determining the Group's business plans and
strategies, formulating the Group's annual budget and final accounts, formulating proposals
for dividend and bonus distribution, and determining duties as conferred to it by the
Avrticles of Association of the Company. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets

and communicates regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.
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The Board meets regularly to review financial statements, material investments in new
projects, dividend policy, major financings, treasury policies and changes in accounting
policies. All Directors have access to board papers and related materials which are
provided in a timely manner. Directors have access to the advices and services provided
by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a view to
ensure that the procedures applicable to Board meetings, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient detail by the secretary of the meetings,
would be circulated to the Directors for their comments and record. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any time upon

a reasonable notice period given by any Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board, the
matters of which the Board determines to be material, the relevant Director will abstain
from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates
have a material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at the

Board meeting.

Under the respective appointment letters, all the current non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a period of three years from |
March 2014 unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the appointment letters.
Their appointment may be terminated either by the Company or by the Director by
giving three months’ written notice to the other party. All the current non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the coming annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent

non-executive Directors independent.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to

retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

EEeTHEREGE  RAMBRE #
BENEARE BREHEK ZEmE B
FRRMEABRNOLE - EFGNMHRE
XK RETHEESERN - 7]
ERARALARE((RARABENNERLR
% - DERESSRFRABERRAIR
ROGESET HERNEFALEENE
EECR L ESREO RN AN
REBRERAENESEE  UWHREEH
Fi#k - ARSRLBNEAELAIWER
7o AIHEAEEREL AR B NEEEM
KrEI&ER] o

REFHEEFEHTERNSRETRRES
ERRBEANNEER  ZEFHHEK
HEMBMEARAEAESNABESZER
BRMERRE  ATEst \HRZEZEE
EHETEABA

RESREFMTES LB LIFMTESH
ZEE RENZEHHRE-_T-OF=
A—BEFAHE=F  HERRIEZEOEX
BIFHEREIN - BRENZET A RARF
IHAEBESAH S EL=EAZSTANM
BiE - SREFRTESRBUFNMTES
BHARARRBHBERARRRLNRRAE
FRELWERE  TERBEE - ARFE
BRESBIUFNTESRELHARRES3
FEHNFEBIMERE - AREARRBM
BBUFATESHRBIUAL -

:t_/'\

EBERRBEFAS L MES
(% LABYIF=mEE MMF&L@$

R=ED—HAB)BHTEE  HEENE
M ARVB=FRRRBFRG LRFER

o

@%\\

SI



The Board believes that the balance between executive and non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the Group. The non-executive Directors provide the
Group with diversified knowledge, expertise and experience. Their views and participation
in Board and committee meetings bring independent judgement and advice on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of interest and management
process, and ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken into account. Two of
the independent non-executive Directors possess the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise, which exceeds the requirements
under the Listing Rules. The opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors

in Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good corporate governance practices.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director will receive a
comprehensive induction package and training provided by the Company's legal advisor,
covering business operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant

regulatory requirements.

The Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules
and regulations. In addition, the Company and the Company Secretary have been
encouraging the Directors and other management to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/
act and corporate governance practices organized by professional bodies, independent
auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can continuously update and further

improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills. The Company Secretary also coordinates, organises and arranges
seminars on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
Directors to assist them in discharging their duties. During the year, seminar materials,
articles and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements have been provided to Directors. An in-house seminar
has been conducted by our legal adviser, a reputable solicitors' firm, covering the topics
of introduction to the Listing Rules relating to spin-offs and Environmental, Social and

Governance Reporting Guide under the Listing Rules.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospectus to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge

their duties.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors received training
with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continues professional development

during the year:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace al—FRAE

Mr. FU Lin (NE Pt

Mr. YUE Zhigiang EHmEE

Ms. MOU Chunhua BRELL

Mr. LIU Chen ARKE

Mr. WONG Hak Kun TRkt
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. JIANG Xiaohong ZET T
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN ERMERE

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FHRERE

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI BIp 4

A attending in-house training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: reading newspapers, journals, the Group's news, industry's news and updates relating to the

ongoing compliance obligations, corporate governance and other related topics, etc
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Delegation by the Board

There is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board for its
consideration and delegation. The Board has given clear directions to management as to
matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf of

the Company.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties and to facilitate effective management,
certain functions of the Board have been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee
(the “Audit Committee”), Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and Nomination Committee (the “"Nomination Committee”) of the Company which
were established with written terms of references in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The adopted terms of references comply with the code provisions as set out from time to

time in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Each board committee is required to report to the Board on its decisions and
recommendations, where appropriate. Each board committee is also provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent professional

advice at the Company's expense according to the Company's policy, if necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least twice per annum. Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and where applicable, to handle any questions

relating to the resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;

b)  to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity and the

effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standard;

¢)  to monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company and the Company's
annual report, interim report and related financial results (if prepared for
publication), and to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in

them; and

d)  to review the Company's financial control, internal control and risk management

system.
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All the three Audit Committee members are independent non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the relevant financial management expertise
and experience. The committee members, together with our external auditor, met three

times during 2015 and discharged their principal responsibilities by:

a)  reviewing the interim results and final results of the Group and the relevant financial
statements and reports and significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them prior to the approval by the Board and reviewing the external auditor's

report and findings relating to the work that has been performed;

b)  reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of engagement for the work

performed;

c)  reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, and the non-

audit service fee payable to the exteral auditor; and

d)  reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group including

financial control, operational control, compliance control and risk management.
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Nomination Committee

Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

b)  to recommend the Board on matters relating to selection, appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

c)  to ensure sufficient biographical details of the nominated candidates are provided

to the Board regarding selection of Board members; and

d)  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

All Board appointment will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge and
length of service, having due regard to the Company's own business model and specific
needs from time to time. Taking into account the Company's corporate strategy and the
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, the Nomination
Committee is comfortable with the existing structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board.

Two meetings have been held by the Nomination Committee during 2015 and the
following work has been satisfactorily concluded:

a)  reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; and

b)  assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's overall policy
and structure on remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing such

remuneration policy;

b)  review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss of office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not

excessive; and

c)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to the

corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During 2015, the Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the existing
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management. It is considered that
the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors and senior management were fair and

reasonable.

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7 September
2012. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options
to selected eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group. During the year, 25,200,000 share options have
been granted by the Company to a distributor in order to motivate and optimise its

performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group.
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The composition of the Board and the Board members' respective attendance in Board
meetings, general meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee

meetings and the Nomination Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December

2015 were as follows:
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No. of meetings attended/held

BHE BTEEYE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Committee  Committee ~ Committee

Board General meeting meeting meeting
meeting meeting B 40 RE
EEEeE BRRAE ZESSER ZESEEE ZRESE=R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. YU Yiping Wallace* a— T 3/4 ) N/A 112 I/1
TERA
Mr. FU Lin (D Vit 5/5 22 N/A 22 /]
TERA
Mr. YUE Zhigiang EEakt 4/5 0 N/A N/A N/A
TERA TERA TERA
Ms. MOU Chunhua** BREZ L 3/4 o/l N/A N/A N/A
TERA TERA TERA
Mr. LIU Chen )= 5/5 12 N/A N/A N/A
TERA TEA TiE A
Mr. WONG Hak Kun IRHEE 5/5 22 N/A N/A N/A
TERA TERA TERA
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Ms. JJANG Xiaohong ZEI 7+ 4/5 02 N/A N/A N/A
T TNER T
Independent Non-executive Directors B U HEHTEE
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BEERE 5/5 112 33 22 /1
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai EEEEE 5/5 ) 33 22 11
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI FIBKT 5/5 ) 33 0N 11
* resigned on 6 October 2015 and attendance record up to then * EZE-RFTANABEREFEEAETL
wH resigned on 29 August 2015 and attendance record up to then o E-Z-RENAZThBAREREERHE
B

During the year under review, the former and the current Chairman of the Company

has held a meeting with independent non-executive Directors respectively, without the

presence of the executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has undertaken and adopted the responsibility for performing the corporate
governance duties pursuant to the CG Code and is committed to ensuring that an
effective governance structure is in place to continuously review, monitor and improve the
corporate governance practices within the Group with regard to the prevailing legal and

regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the policies and practices on the Group's
corporate governance, developed a code of conduct applicable to the Directors and
employees, monitored the Company's legal and regulatory compliance, organised training
and continuing professional development for Directors and management and reviewed

the Company's compliance with the CG Code and the disclosures in this Annual Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge of its

corporate governance function.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system of the Group. Our internal control system includes a well-defined
management structure with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement
of business objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring proper maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable and
timely financial information for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance
with relevant legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established risk
management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the business to be addressed
by management. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has supervised a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system and is satisfied with the scope of

review and the effectiveness of the system.

The systems of internal control are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, business
risk; to help safeguard the Group's assets against fraud and other irregularities; and to give
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material financial misstatement or loss.
In addition, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper and fair accounting

records and assist in the compliance with relevant rules and regulations.
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During the year, the Board worked with the Audit Committee and the external auditor
to review all material internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control and risk management function in respect of the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company's accounting and financial reporting function and satisfied that they were

effective and in compliance with our policies.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The management team of the Company meets regularly to review and discuss with
the executive Directors on day-to-day operational matters, financial and operating
performance as well as to monitor and ensure that the management is properly carrying

out the directions and strategies pre-determined by the Board.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for the Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors” securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model Code. No incident of

non-compliance has been noted by the best knowledge of the Company.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping proper accounting books and
records and overseeing the preparation of accounts for each financial year/period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the
end of the financial year/period and the profit and loss for the year/period. The Directors
have adopted applicable International Financial Reporting Standards in all material respects,
selected appropriate accounting policies and then applied them consistently, and have
made judgments and estimates that they believe to be fair and reasonable. The Directors

use a going concern basis in preparing the accounts unless it is not applicable.
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The Board acknowledges that a clear, balanced and timely presentation of financial
information is crucial in maintaining the confidence of Shareholders in the Company.
Reasonable disclosure of Company's financial position and prospects are provided in the
reports. Annual and interim results are published within three and two months after the

end of the relevant financial year/period, respectively.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section headed

“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 79 to 80 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors' and Officers Liability Insurance for its
Directors and officers covering the costs, losses, expenses and liabilities arising from the
performance of their duties. The insurance policy covers legal action against its Directors
and officers to comply with the requirement of the Code. During the year, no claim was

made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for effective communication
with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the sub-committees, or if he cannot
be present, fellow Directors and other management members will be made available to

answer questions at the general meetings.

Extensive information about the Group's activities is provided in this Annual Report,
the interim report and circulars which are sent to Shareholders in a timely manner and
are made available on the Company's website (www.twrl | 15.net). Our website serves
as a communication platform where company information including corporate profile,
corporate governance materials, announcements, circulars, business news and financial
reports are made available to the public. All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings of the Company to understand the business of the Group from the

Directors and senior management in the general meeting.

The members of the Board will meet and communicate with Shareholders in the coming
AGM 2016 which will be held on Wednesday, | June 2016. The notice of the AGM 2016
will be dispatched to all Shareholders not less than twenty clear business days. At the
AGM 2016, the Chairman of the Board will demand for a poll and the Company's Hong

Kong branch share registrar will be appointed as the scrutineer for the vote-taking.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meeting
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the Company
deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by such
Shareholders, provided that such Shareholders held at the date of deposit of the written
requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date
of deposit which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the
Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of deposit of the requisition duly
proceed to convene the meeting, the Shareholders themselves may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as those meetings which may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders as a
result of the failure of the Directors in convening the said meeting shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings
under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
the proposing of a person for electing as a Director, please refer to the procedures

available on the websites of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board by mail in
writing to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 3401, 34th
Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there had been no change to the Company's constitutional documents.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure investors have a better understanding of the Group, our management is pro-

active in its investor relations initiatives, Our executive Directors and the investor relations

officers communicate with research analysts and institutional investors on an on-going

basis and meet with research analysts/investors after our results announcements, attend

major investors' conferences and participate in non-deal roadshows to communicate the

Company's financial performance and business strategy.

During the year, our executive Directors and the investor relations officers have met with

a number of research analysts and investors, attended conferences as well as deal and

non-deal roadshows as follows:

Month
B

March/April 2015

2015%3/4

August/September 2015

2015%8/9 A

Other period of the year 2015

2015 E b HAfE

Event

ES

Attended 7 post results non-deal roadshow/
Investors conference calls
EMEREIR SRS REEWIEFESE
/\7i707)

Attended 7 post results non-deal roadshow/
Investors conference calls
BHEEHZFIERE REERNBEGE
K75

Attended over 20 analysts or investors meetings
and conference/Conference calls
Bm0SAMASREE SR e M

%u%a 3

REERE
RERREEHAEGEERTRAZTE &
EEROEGS R EERBRORE - A2
AMTEFEREEMRTIEEMARONE
FHEEREEETHERR  UNAREHE
BABTIBRERESNE REESH
HEETBREENTERZMIERZBR
2 NEEAREZMBRE R EHRE

RAFEER  AREIRTESEEEEBE
TECEBRSWRESIMENKEETE
WHETUTHF2URR S EIER HER

@
=

Organizer

W7

ICBC International/investor relations consultant

THREIR,REE BRER

ICBC International/investor relations consultant

TRERREEBRER

Investor relations consultants

REERERER



COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Wai Kit was appointed on a full-time basis as the Company Secretary and
during the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Chow has taken not less than 15 hours of

appropriate professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the independence of
the external auditor to ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
of the financial statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members of
the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company's external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is independent and recommended to the Board to re-appoint it

as the Company's external auditor at the AGM 201 6.

For the year, the fees paid/payable to the Company's external auditors in respect of audit

and non-audit services provided to the Group are set out below:
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2015 2014

20154 20145

RMB’000 RMB'000

Services rendered REMRE AR¥T T AREFTT

Audit services BZRG 6,050 7,000
Non-audit services FEEZIRTS

Review and other reporting services 25 B I L fth R S AR 7 400 —

6,450 7,000
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COMPLIANCE OF THE DEED NON-COMPETITION

Tibet Water Resources Limited, Maple Essence Investments Limited, True Asset Holdings
Limited and Mr. Wang Peter Jian (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders™) have
entered into a deed of non-competition undertaking dated 14 June 2011 (the “NCU") in
favour of the Company. The Company and its Directors have made market enquiries and
nothing has come to the attention of the Company or its Directors that the Controlling
Shareholders are engaging in any business that may compete with that of the Group
in contravention of the terms of the NCU. The Company and its Directors confirmed
that the management of the Company has made verbal enquiries periodically with the
Controlling Shareholders, to which the Controlling Shareholders have responded that
they are not, or have not been, doing any business in competition with that of the Group
as prohibited under the NCU. In addition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
made its annual declaration of compliance of the NCU for the year ended 3| December
2015 respectively, and the independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
also reviewed the enforcement status of the NCU, and confirmed that the Controlling
Shareholders have abided by the undertakings contained in the NCU.

Disclaimer

The contents of this section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance
purposes only. The information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own
independent legal or other professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims
all liabilities and losses incurred by its Shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed

"Shareholders' Rights".
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The Directors are delighted to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial statements on page 88
of this Annual Report. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the financial year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
("MD&A") on pages 17 to 20 and pages 24 to 45 of this Annual Report respectively.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company is set out in
"“Business Review" of "MD&A" section and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements

on page 26 and pages |15 to 121 of this Annual Report respectively.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Subsequent to the passing of a special resolution in relation to the Change of Company
Name by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 30 December 2015,
the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was issued by the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman Islands on 30 December 2015 certifying that the change of
the Company's English name from “Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.” to “Tibet
Water Resources Ltd.” and the foreign name from “FaiEl5 007K & JRIERBR AR to
Tk ERBIR AR took effect on 30 December 2015,

The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 27 January 2016
confirming the registration of the new name of the Company “Tibet Water Resources
Ltd. FERR7KEIRBPRZAA]" in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income on pages 83 to
84 of this Annual Report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents per share (which
is equivalent to approximately RMB3.35 cents per share) to the Shareholders of the
Company whose names are listed in the register of members on 23 June 2016, amounting
to approximately RMB86 million, and the remaining retained earning approximately
RMBI,328 million.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

years is set out on page 192 of this Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the land use rights and property, plant
equipment of the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively to as set out on pages 130 to 133 of this Annual Report,

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements on page 159 of this Annual Report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 168 to 169 of this Annual Report.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME
The Company has adopted the Scheme on 7 September 2012. The purpose of the

Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options to selected eligible
participants to motivate them and to optimise their performance and efficiency for the

benefit of the Group.

The Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors), the Company's
subsidiaries, employees of the Group and other persons the Board considers have
contributed or will contribute to the Group. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 0% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e. 256,889,300 shares), unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules. The subscription price of a share
in respect of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official closing
price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average
official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value
of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall remain effective within a period of 10 years

from that date.

The Company granted 25,200,000 share options for the subscription of 25,200,000
shares of the Company to a distributor of the Group on 16 December 2015 (“Date
of Grant”), representing 0.98% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
each eligible participants in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant, unless with the prior approval from the
Company's shareholders and with such participants and his associates abstaining from
voting. Options granted to any Director or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, shall be subject to the prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors. Where any option granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective associates, would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in the |2 month period, (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue and the date of such grant; and (i) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the shares, in excess of HKD5 million, such grant of options shall
be subject to prior approval of the Company's shareholders in general meeting by way of

poll.
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The exercise price of the options granted is HK$3.00 and the exercise period is for ten

year.

An offer of a grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme shall remain open
for acceptance for 30 days from the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HKD to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
from the date of grant until the expiry of ten year from such date. The subscription price
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, and in any event shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a share. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted
and prior to the expiry of ten year from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten year after it has been granted. No option may
be granted more than ten year after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.
Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten year from the date of

adoption.

Movements during the year of the options granted under the share option scheme of the

Company to the participants were as follows:

Number of share options

ZBETRETEEROETLLITERRT
fﬁo
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HEF 30 R AR HER - NENEBBEKR
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A HERER T EEA% AR TFE
e REERHESe2RPFEE - AN
EABERATIEERAT=ZENESE : ()
BRI L BB R AE B RERAR
Wi {8 (i) BERE B A IR % B e
RAEHRERARORNBUTEFIE
B (i) LA T o B PO m] AR BB P4 = )
HIEFNBREREEREY R RE AR
KB BEF T FEmABEERTE - 8B
BREATENHRRHEFS2RRIEETE
ENGBBAROBRES g TF - N8
BAET BRI EE R R T FRIABRUER
#-BRIEADRARBERASHIEHEZSIR
AL - BRI 2 8 RA A HE T F
RBERR AR -

FARBEARABREERTLEALHN
BIENZEERNT

BREHE
outstanding outstanding
asat asat
| January 31 December
2015 granted exercised 2015 Exercise
R=-O-%1f% during during  RZ=O-EfF price  Date of
—A—-H the year theyear T=A=1—H per share  grant Exercisable period
e RATE FARE FRTE I RATE BRTEE BRHAH T8
HK$
BT
— 25,200,000 — 25,200,000 300 16/12/2015 17112016 - 31/12/2025 (Notelf{3E)
Note: Brat

The vesting of the share option in conditional, subject to the achievement of the prescribed sales and

performance targets by the grantee within three years commencing from | January 2016.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of Association
or the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the

Cayman Islands, the Company's place of incorporation.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the distributable retained earnings of the Company amounted
to RMBO.| million (31 December 2014: RMBI2 million). As at 31 December 2015, the
share premium of the Company, amounted to RMBI,207 million (31 December 2014:
RMBI,207 million), is distributable to Shareholders subject to the solvency test and the

sanction of an ordinary resolution.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the past financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus, is set
out on page 192 in this Annual Report. The summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of

the Company's listed securities during the financial year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun

Ms. MOU Chunhua (resigned on 29 August 2015)

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace (resigned on 6 October 2015)
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Non-executive Director
Ms. JIANG Xiaohong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 7 July 2015)

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI

In accordance with the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. FU Lin,
Mr. LIU Chen, Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN and Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai retire at the
forthcoming AGM 2016 and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 46 to 50 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM 2016 has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors had or was deemed to have any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO"), which are required to be recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SECURITIES
AND FUTURES ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares/ Approximate

Long/short Capacity/Nature underlying shares percentage
Name position of interest fin,/HHE of shareholding
i HaE/ %kE 5B/ ERtE BOWEE RESOAEDL
Tibet Water Resources Limited (Note I)  Long position  Beneficial owner [,110,572,000 shares 4323%
R KERBR DB (M) e BEalEA 1,110,572,0008 i 17
Maple Essence Investments Limited (Note 2) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation [,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
MEREFRAR (FE2) 39 REAB S 1,110,572,000 B A& 17
True Asset Holdings Limited (Note 3) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation [,110,572,000 shares 4323%
True Asset Holdings Limited (f3£3)  #& R EE R ER 1,110,572,000 A& A&7
Mr. WANG Peter Jian (also known as Long position  Interest of controlled corporation [,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
Mr. WANG Jian Peter) (Note 3&4) & LB 1,110,572,000 B& B 17

TEREE(MIEI&4)

Notes:

Tibet Water Resources Limited is held as to 98.67% by Maple Essence Investments Limited, which
is in tumn held as to 90% by True Asset Holdings Limited. Tibet Water Resources Limited holds
[,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

Maple Essence Investments Limited holds 98.67% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources Limited
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 1,110,572,000 shares in the Company. Maple
Essence Investments Limited is held as to 90% by True Asset Holdings Limited and as to 10% by
Eminent Partner Limited. True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. WANG Peter Jian
while Eminent Partner Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. YU Yiping Wallace, a former director of

the Company, and as to 50% by Ms. LI Xiao Bing, spouse of Mr. YU Yiping Wallace.

True Asset Holdings Limited holds 88.8% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources Limited through
Maple Essence Investments Limited. Therefore, True Asset Holdings Limited is deemed to be

interested in 1,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

GEE

()

@)

©)

FARKERAR A BEEREERDARF
698.67% - WEHZREBR AR ATrue Asset
Holdings Limited$$%590% ° FEIKARAR A
BIEAARE10572,0000 815 ©

MERBEFRAAFAABKERAERAA
98.67%MHE - EIL IR RN AR KERER
RAEFHEBHARRE,110,572,0008 B &
HEER - MEREBRRAMBTrue Asset
Holdings Limited 52 Eminent Partner Limited% 7l
FB90% K% 10% ° True Asset Holdings Limited
HERSLEEEHA  Eminent Partner Limited
RAAFREEEG—FREREN—F%
EMRTRNMERZEERE50%

True Asset Holdings Limitedi @18 21 & B IR
NEIFEAEBKERARAE188.8%E
It * True Asset Holdings Limited #48 AR AR A
Al1,110,572,0000 8% 15 R 5 12 -
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(4)  True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WANG Peter Jian. Therefore, Mr. WANG
Peter Jian is deemed to be interested in |,110,572,000 Shares in the Company in which Tibet
Water Resources Limited is interested. For the purpose of the SFO, the spouse of Mr. WANG
Peter Jian is taken to have a duty of disclosure in Hong Kong in relation to the said I,110,572,000
Shares. The interest disclosed by the spouse of Mr. WANG Peter Jian is that of Mr. WANG Peter
Jian which is attributed to her pursuant to the SFO for disclosure purposes. Nevertheless, she has

no interest, legal or beneficial, in those shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2015, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other than Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered
into any arrangement which enables the existing Directors or chief executive to have
the right to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other legal entities.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and participating
in the state managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC, the Group has not operated

any other retirement benefits schemes for the Group's employees.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the

basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, no Director is considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group's five largest customers and purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 63% and 57% of the total sales
and total purchases for the year, respectively. The Group's largest customer and supplier
accounted for approximately 33% and 21% of the total sales and total purchases for the

financial year, respectively.

During the financial year, none of (i) the Directors or any of their associates, or (i) any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital), had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and

suppliers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent of

the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The utilisation status of the net proceeds from the Company's initial public offering is set

out on page 4| to 42 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the reasonable
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of its Shares in the hands of the public in accordance with the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date of the issue of this Annual Report.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make charitable donations (2014: approximately
RMB100,000).

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of significant event occurring after the balance sheet date are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements and “Event After the Balance Sheet Date” of “MD&A"
section in page 185 and pages 39 to 40 in this Annual Report, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company had reviewed the Group's annual results for the

year ended 31 December 2015 and provided advices and comments thereon.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were

audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming

AGM 2016 and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain transactions summarized in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2015 also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. As those
transactions were all de minimis transactions, they were exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter [4A

of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Jesper Bjoern MADSEN

Chairman

24 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the shareholders of Tibet Water Resources Ltd.
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tibet Water Resources Ltd.
(formerly known as Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 81 to 191 which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 3| December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and
of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 3| December
R+=A=+—~H
Note 2015 2014
B E —E-AfF —ZT—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFIT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Land use rights T e 7 31,417 32,14
Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") ERE
([% BERRE] 8 655,505 661256
Intangible assets B EE 9 154,638 176,724
Goodwill kS 10 721,139 721,139
Investment in associates i /NG L R = 12 1,062,595 601,263
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHEE 21 3,038 2,524
Prepayments A FIA 15 6,792 5,035
Other receivables and other assets Hiba hEmEE 6 360 [5,112
2,635,484 2,215,194
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables EUE F 3R 13 205,266 332,284
Prepayments AR FIA 15 20,942 15,775
Prepaid enterprise income tax AN EEMEH 10,798 15,284
Other receivables and other assets Hivprl s M EtmEE 16 87,341 28,594
Inventories 75 |7 72,528 65,321
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 8 628,132 763,409
1,025,007 1,220,667
Total assets MEE 3,660,491 3,435,861
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners of the Company EUNGIE 2PN YL £
Share capital (RN 19 21,363 21,363
Share premium 195 (B 19 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves ] 20 235,269 210,182
Retained earnings BiFles 1,414,344 1,239,147
2,877,805 2,677,521
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R+=A=+—H
Note 2015 2014
B aE —E-1F —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBT T
Non-controlling interests FERES Il 319,202 273,098
Total equity DB 3,197,007 2,950,619
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings fam 26 — 91,549
Deferred revenue RIEMA 23 22,058 30,850
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMGHARE 2 38,340 35,835
60,398 158,234
Current liabilities =N
Trade payables JETE 5K 24 72,827 117,340
Deferred revenue and advances received RIEWA RTBRE F
from customers 22 44,868 60,395
Enterprise income tax payable e % FEH 20,558 =
Accruals and other payables R ER REMER K 25 64,833 49,657
Borrowings &k 26 200,000 99,616
403,086 327,008
Total liabilities BEAH 463,484 485242
Total equity and liabilities EakaEeE 3,660,491 3,435,861

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F88E 19 ENE AR ERAMBREN

statements. ,%HBZ E‘B T/J} °

The financial statements on pages 81 to 191 were approved by the Board of Directors on

24 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEFER
Year ended 3| December
BZ+-A=t—-ALEE
Note 2015 2014
P EE “E-EHF —EB-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Revenue WA 6 832,348 772,537
Cost of sales SHE KA 28 (330,168) (288/488)
Gross profit EF 502,180 484,049
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER 28 (108,366) (114319)
Administrative expenses THER 28 (74,806) (81,405)
Other gains, net HAAMG - FHE 27 44,403 171,782
Operating profit KERE 363,411 460,107
Finance income Liprt 6 10,397 13978
Finance costs B%ER (20,49¢) (9,870)
Finance (costs)/income, net Mis(BRA), W - F8 30 (10,099) 4,108
Share of profit of associates FE 1B & 1 B I 12 21,332 1263
Profit before income tax BR AT 155 A1 A8 374,644 465478
Income tax expense P ER 31 (51,573) (80,864)
Profit for the year FEFE 323,071 384,614
Profit attributable to: PE4E I
— Owners of the Company S YNCIE 2SI 276,967 343,499
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 46,104 41,115
323,071 384,614
Earnings per share for profit attributable to EREHEBEABERNEEREF
owners of the Company
— Earnings per share (basic and diluted) -BREFN(EXRETE)
(RMB cents per share) (BRAR%Z) 32 10.78 1337
The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FB8E 191 AR TR A BREN

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEERER

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

Note 2015 2014
P EE —E-A1F —EB-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit for the year FEFE 323,071 384614
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hth2 @Ak (BR)
[tems that will not be reclassified subsequently B TR EREF A EE
to profit or loss B A EH
Currency translation differences SNETE Z 8 20 4,391 (766)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FEEM2MEE (FE) -
net of tax MERHE 4391 (766)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEA2ENR 327,462 383,848
Attributable to: BER:
— Owners of the Company —RRAERA 281,358 342,733
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 46,104 41,115
Total comprehensive income for the year FES2EKR 327,462 383,848

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

F8E 19 EMMERRFHAMBRRA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERRBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

ESNGE 2PN
Non-
Share Share Retained controlling Total
capital premium Reserves earnings Total interests equity
Bx  RiEE i ErkE A FEREZ  RRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
At | January 2014 R=E-RE-A-A 21,363 1,206,829 195,525 1,073,753 2497470 231983 2,729453
Profit for the year ERFE — — — 343499 343499 41,115 384614
Currency translation differences ~ JMEHEZH = = (766) = (766) = (766)
Total comprehensive income FERXEYREHE
for the year = = (766) 343499 342,733 41,115 383848
Appropriations to statutory REEERBAESE
surplus reserve — — 15423 (15423) — — —
Dividends igs) — — — (162682) (162,682) = (162,682)
At 31 December 2014 R=2-m%
TZA=t-H 21,363 1,206,829 210,182 1,239,147 2,671,521 273,098 2,950,619
Profit for the year FENE — — — 276,967 276,967 46,104 323,071
Currency translation differences M EZH — — 4391 — 4391 — 4391
Total comprehensive income FERANRATE
for the year — — 4391 276,967 281,358 46,104 327,462
Appropriations to statutory RIVEEBHARS
surplus reserve — — 20,696 (20,69%) — — —
Dividends RE — — — (81,074) (81,074) — (81,074)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
tZA=1+-H 21,363 1,206,829 235,269 1,414,344 2,877,805 319,202 3,197,007
The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F88E 19 BN AZEGABMBREN

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

Note 2015 2014
P EE —E-0F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRER
Cash generated from operations RERPELNRE 34 449,044 666,614
Interest received BUHHE 13,920 7,563
Income tax paid ENAEHR (24,622) (119,620)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHEEANRFE 438,342 554,557
Cash flows from investing activities REEHRER
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WE—RMELE
(MBrEkENSRe) — (51,000)
Purchases of PP&E BEVE HELRE (23,160) (18,158)
Cash received from government grants B ERE B E A B H T
related to fixed assets R 4,950 —
Purchases of AFS BERHLEERERE (390,000) (600,000)
Proceeds from disposal of AFS HERHLESMEEMERIE 396,732 617,850
Loans granted to third parties BTE=ZATHNER (50,000) (125,500)
Repayments of loans received from third parties BEEKE=FTER 14,000 162,581
Cash advances to an associate BN ERRIRRE BN (57,000) =
Repayments of cash advances received EBEEIHERARREBR
from an associate 57,000 =
Investment in associates REEE R AR IR E 12 (440,000) (600,000)
Amounts paid to third parties BRNE=FFIA (670,070) (220,000)
Amounts received from third parties BRE=AHKIEA 595,000 220,000
Amounts received from related parties B @ 7 A 265,070 =
Amounts paid to related parties BT RE8 75 318 (190,000) =
Decrease in term deposits & B AR - 30231
Increase in term deposits EHERAEM — (30,000)
Net cash used in investing activities REGHMARSFHE (487,478) (613996)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
Year ended 3| December
BZE+-_A=1+—HLEE
Note 2015 2014
i aE —E-1fF —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHRER
Dividends paid to shareholders RIS EL IS (81,074) (162,682)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE NG TE 250,000 =
Repayments of bank borrowings EERRTEX (55,810) —
Repayments of borrowings from government BERBATHE K (200,000) —
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHMAREFHR (86,884) (162,682)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEBEUHRDEE (136,020) (222,121)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FYReRAEEEY 763,409 985416
Exchange translation gains on cash Be kR FEYER s
and cash equivalents 743 [14
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXAERBRESEEY 18 628,132 763,409

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

F8BE 19 BN ERZTHA M BHREN
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 8 November 2010. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KYI-1111, Cayman Islands. On 30 December 2015, the Company
changed its name from Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd. to Tibet Water

Resources Ltd.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group are engaged in
production and sales of premium bottled mineral water products and highland
barley beer products in the PRC.

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 30 June 201 I

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board on
24 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, which

are carried at fair value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by the Group for the

first time for the financial year beginning on or after | January 2015:

Amendment to IAS19 on contributions from employees or third parties to defined
benefit plans. The amendment distinguishes between contributions that are linked
to service only in the period in which they arise and those linked to service in more
than one period. The amendment allows contributions that are linked to service,
and do not vary with the length of employee service, to be deducted from the cost
of benefits eamed in the period that the service is provided. Contributions that are
linked to service, and vary according to the length of employee service, must be
spread over the service period using the same attribution method that is applied to
the benefits.

Amendments from annual improvements to IFRSs — 2010 — 2012 Cycle, on IFRS
8, “Operating segments”, IAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 38,
“Intangible assets” and IAS, “Related party disclosures”.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

Amendments from annual improvements to IFRSs — 201 — 2013 Cycle, on
IFRS 3, “Business combinations”, IFRS |3, “Fair value measurement” and IAS 40,

“Investment property".

The adoption of the improvements made in the 2010-2012 Cycle has required
additional disclosures in the segment note. Other than that, the remaining

amendments are not material to the Group.

(b)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain

information in the consolidated financial statements.

(c)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations
are effective for annual periods beginning after | January 2015 and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group, except the following set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(c)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of
IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates
to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains
but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through
“other comprehensive income” (OCI) and fair value through P&L. The basis of
classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in OCl not recycling. There is now a new
expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
IFRS9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the “hedged ratio” to be the same as the one

management actually use for risk management purposes.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(c)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is different to that currently
prepared under IAS 39. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after | January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is yet to assess
IFRS 9's full impact.

IFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers” deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity's contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when
a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces
IAS 18 “Revenue” and IAS || “Construction contracts” and related interpretations.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018

and earlier application is permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 5.

IFRS 16, “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement
of leases and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of
financial statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key
change arising from IFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted for
on balance sheet for lessees. The standard replaces IAS |7 “Leases”, and related
interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
| January 2019 and earlier application is permitted subject to the entity adopting
IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” at the same time. The group is

currently assessing the impact of IFRS [6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(c)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that

would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1  Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable

net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.] Consolidation (continued)

(a)  Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-

measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with |AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with

the Group's accounting policies.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.32 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets

including goodwill.

24  Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's
investments in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s

identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

TESHHRBEE)

23 KEBARE)

232 BEBHBHRE

R B 2 B 8% & 1R AR RUR B
BR e AT DIEEREERERA o
MBARMEERARARERRKE R
e R IE 51 B

R ERBRN SRR S HREHE AT
M2 EWE BT B RED
BAREERARRAERANES
ﬁi%%é@@ﬁﬁﬁ@%@@’%
My ER 5 450 0 B 5 O
BT, -

24 HBELT

BE AR RAEEHAEAERTYER
TEZHENERE BERENT
0% ES0% IR BHENRE - REBEEDQ
AR EFRAREENEAR - BE
BamE BRRERKAER TR
WhE A ER R g N goR A IR EE AR
REEREHIRE AR EFISER -
AEERBERARNEERERER
BEMNEE - WER-—RBEAAH
BHERDRE BEARMKRAER
SEELZBERRNATZINEER
BEAABEFE JANERNEZEA
AREHERE o

Annual Report & %3 ¢ 2015



TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. ¢ #RKERERA A

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

24  Associates (continued)
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in OCl

is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in OCl is recognised in OCI
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the

amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between
the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the

income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments, has been identified as the Board that makes strategic decisions.

2.6  Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the operational entities located in the PRC is RMB, and the Company's
functional currency is HK dollar (‘HKD").

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, payables and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income statement within “finance

income, net”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6  Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the

closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resutting exchange differences are recognised in OCl.

2.7  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

TESHHRBEE)

2.6 MNEWE(E)

() FEBRA]

N ER RN FELTRNMEEE

ER(TERASHEBIRCERENEK
MERB)NEERMBMR - BATH

AT ERIREH

() BOHINBNEERBRANEE
FaRERZEERBERANET
ExfE

iy BHFNBRANBATERET
HEXTEGRIEL T HELFE
RHGBBEXNZAFENESE
WE G ERBERAT - WARER
EXSBHNEXTE) &

(i) FEBUmMEENELZENE
th 2 EER S W+ R o

27 YE- BERSR®E

M BB RREBRELRAR R
FERREEERYE BLRABE
WHEZEHEERBENRAS -

BRERABERAIEANEETRE
ZIA B AR R REENEM%EB
RABER] SERTER - TR ABER
REEXERAR - BEBEE(NE
) BEEREDARAEER LHER -
FBERMEEREREREEELN
PR REEFBRP X -



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less
accumulated impairment losses of each asset to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Useful lives
Buildings 12 to 40 years
Machinery 5tol5 years
Vehicles 3 to 8 years
Fumiture and equipment 3to 5 years
Others 10 to 20 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within “Other gains, net” in the consolidated

income statement.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents buildings, plant and machinery
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated

above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets

2.8.1 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair

value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is

monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately

as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.82 Trade name

Trade name acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Trade name has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost of trade name over their estimated useful lives of 18.2 years.

283 Distribution network

Distribution network acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The distribution network has a finite useful life of 8 years
and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using

the straight-line method over the expected life of the distribution network.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Land use rights

All'land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land ownership right exists.
The Group acquired the rights to use certain land and the premiums paid for such
rights are recorded as land use rights, which are stated at cost and amortised over

the use terms of 50 years using the straight-line method.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.1 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11  Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's receivables
comprise “trade receivables” (Note |3), “other receivables” (Note 16), “cash
and cash equivalents” (Note 18) in the consolidated balance sheet. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement as “other gains, net”. Interest on available-for-sale
secunities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income

statement as part of other gains.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the

event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)  Loans and receivables (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective

evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated

income statement.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

220 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

221 Deferred revenue and advance received from customers

Deferred revenue and advance received from customers represent the
consideration allocated to the goods to be delivered in future. Deferred revenue
also include government grants relating to property, plant and equipment (Note
2.26). Deferred revenue is stated at the consideration allocated less the amount
previously recognised as revenue upon the delivery of goods to the wholesaler
(Note 2.25).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

222 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in OCl or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also

recognised in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retumns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related

deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

222 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the

ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable

entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

The employee benefit expenses mainly include salary, bonus, allowances and other
expenditures incurred in exchange for the employee services. All employee benefit
obligations are recognised during the period when the services are provided,
and charged to the consolidated income statement or included in the cost of the

related assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

223 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)  Pension obligations - defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or

a reduction in the future payments is available.

(b)  Housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and other employee social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on
certain percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceilings. The
Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions payable in

each period.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect

to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The

increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown
as net of value-added tax, retums, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales

within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration

the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)  Sales of goods — wholesale and retail

The Group manufactures and sells a range of bottled mineral water products and
beer products in the wholesale and retail market. The Group also sells bottle
preforms and caps to a related party. Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the distributors/retailers/related party, the
distributors/retailers/related party have full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
distributors/retailers/related party's acceptance of the products. Delivery does not
occur until the products have been shipped to the specified location and accepted
by distributors/retailers/related party; the risks of obsolescence and loss have been

transferred to the distributors/retailers/related party.

Sales of bottled mineral water products to certain distributors or end customers
are made in form of water cards (“Water Cards Sales Arrangement”). Under
the Water Cards Sales Arrangement with the distributors, the distributors sell the
water cards to the end customers and use the logistics network, which is designed
by the Group with the Group's long-term cooperative logistics suppliers, to deliver
bottled water to the designated locations at the request of the end customers
when the water cards are redeemed before the expiry dates; and relevant logistics
expenses are charged to the Group. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales
Arrangement are deferred as the Group has ultimate obligations towards the card
holders. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales Arrangement are recognised
when the water cards are redeemed by the end customers, or when the water

cards are expired, whichever is earlier.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

TESHHRBEE)

225 WARR(E

(@) BoHE-HEREE
AEERERARBERTENSEE
—RIMEBRKEMREBEER -
AEENM—L@EH A EERLRE
Z -EEEERRINERTEHEE/
TEl/ MBS KER/TEE/
Bl L EERNEEREBRER
2RTEHE BYERABITEARMY
Bl TER B WEE L
ERE BmEEFTFTUER K
EREEREHIBECHE TEE
/BB WE - REBEREER
BREBRELHEE TEE,/ B
B BB

[ 5P AR SH A Bk AR o B P R LR TR R
IKEmIBE KR ALER ([KF#
ERH]) EREEHAKIHER
BT BHEERRREPHEKS
TERATEERARBERAYRAE
HEARNDRBEEKRIHAE
Al - ERARK KRR R R P BRKA
HIETE 3 B XK K - MM YR
ERMAKEAE RAKREHFER
ABBREL K RHEERHE T
A E WA T LARERER - ZKK
HERE TOEREERAEREE
FRABKREIERRIHE(UNRER
A) T IARER



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the

original effective interest rate.

(¢c)  Rental income
Rental income from leasing of a production line is recognised in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

226 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply

with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are

intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred revenue and are credited to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets (Note
221).

2.27 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases as lessee (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease. Rental received under operating leases as lessor (net of any
incentives given to the lessee) is recorded as revenue in the consolidated income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.28 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved

by the Company's shareholders.

2.29 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan, under
which the entity receives services as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Group
measures the goods or services received, and the corresponding increase in equity,
directly, at the fair value of the goods or services received, unless that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value
of the goods or services received, the Group shall measure their value, and the
corresponding increase in equity, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments granted. The fair value of the services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is charged to the income statement when the services are

received.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if

any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share

capital (and share premium).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within the Group is RMB and
most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from its cash exchange transactions, which are primarily
denominated in HKD.

To mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations, the Group continually
assesses and monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the year ended
31 December 2015, management did not consider it is necessary to enter into
any hedging transactions in order to reduce the exposure to foreign exchange risk,
because the exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign

exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 December 2015, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against HKD
with all other variables held constant, the total net assets of the Group would
have been approximately RMB62,156,000 (2014: RMB54,922,000) higher/lower
respectively, mainly as a result of foreign exchange translation of the financial
statements for the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiary whose functional
currency is HKD; the post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB4,01 1,000
(2014: RMB8,010,000) higher/lower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. During
2015 and 2014, the Group's borrowings at variable rates were all denominated in
RMB. At 3| December 2015, if interest rates on RMB-denominated floating-rate
borrowings had been 5% basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB423,000 (2014: nil)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has no borrowing at fixed interest rate and thus

the Group is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables. The carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables, represent the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to those financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in the PRC including Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
which management believes are of high credit quality. There was no recent history

of default of cash and cash equivalents from such financial institutions/authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wa
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit nisk (continued)

The Group's trade receivable due from a single external customer is approximately
RMB 154,000,000, representing 75% of the balances of the Group's trade
receivables as at 3| December 2015 (2014: RMB289,550,000, 87%). The Group's
sales contract with this customer ended on 30 June 2015. In view of the history
of business dealings made with the customer and the sound financial position and
reputation of the customer, management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group's outstanding receivable balance due from this customer.
The Group's other receivables are due from other third parties. The Group
performs ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its customers/
debtors on an individual basis, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors, and generally does not require collateral from the
customers/debtors on the outstanding balances. Based on the expected realisation
and timing for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group maintains its
provision for doubtful accounts and actual losses incurred have been within
management's expectation, and management believes that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding receivable balances. In the event
that the Group fails to collect the outstanding trade receivables due from the single
external customer, the Group's financial position and operating results will be

adversely affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B R R =T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit nisk (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has unsecured loans to two third parties
amounting to RMBI 1,500,000 and RMB50,000,000 (31 December 2014: the
Group has unsecured loan to two third parties amounting to RMB 1,500,000 and
RMB14,000,000) and cash advances to an associate amounting to RMB21,231,000
(31 December 2014: RMB2,134,000). Management performed credit evaluations
of the financial conditions of the counter parties and considered that these loans
and cash advances will be repaid on time with no collectability risks; management
concluded that no impairment provision was necessary accordingly. In the event
that the counter parties could not make payments on time or default their
payments, the Group's financial position and operating results will be adversely

affected.

There was no other financial asset carrying a significant exposure to credit risk.

(c)  Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group's treasury function allows flexibility in funding by maintaining

adequate cash and cash equivalents.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position based on

the expected cash flows.

3
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3. MERBEZR(E)

b) EEERE)
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E ¥ 11,500,000 7C & A K % 50,000,000
T(ZE—mE+ZA=+—0: K%
Bl MEE=ANEERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Liguidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows,

HERARER(Z)

3. MERBEZR(E)

© EEEEEE)
TERAOMEEEREZANEHA &4
A RAABEI S RARNNARER
MNeRmaE - RPIRBENRELA
BHHTEHRTBER S RE °

Less than | year 1-2 years
—FHURA —EWF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®BTR

Group KEE

At 3| December 2015 R-E-RF+=-A=+—-H

Borrowings & 203,859 =
Trade payables (Note 24) FEREH (Fi1EE24) 72827 —
Other financial liabilities HithemBE 48,111 —
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-NFE+=-A=+—H

Borrowings Ak 105,000 95,000
Trade payables (Note 24) ERE ST (FiiFr4) 117,340 =
Other financial liabilities HithepBE 30,113 —

(@)  The Group provided a financial guarantee to an associate company for bank
borrowing of RMB260,000,000 as at 3| December 2015 (3| December
2014: nil). Given the financial position and eaming ability of the associate
company, management believe that the risk of default for the associate
company for the loan repayment is very low and thus management believes
that there is no material liquidity risk arising from the financial guarantee

provided by the Group.

@ RZE-RF+A=+—H8"
AEBEM—REEQRNIRT
& Z A K # 260,000,000 7T 12 12
BBERCE-—NFE+ZA
=+—B:E\)  ERZHER
AP ERR kB S  EE
BRE ZHELREENEN
REBEE - Bt - EBERAKX
SEMRENMBERTEESE
EMEXNREERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=a

B R R =T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group's capital is mainly from equity funding and borrowings from bank for the
year ended 3| December 2015.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. Total
capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus

borrowings.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

3

MRERERE)

32 EXEBERE(E)
AEBEEREANEEAREARSE
BECERNEEN  #imARRRED
W REMFEAEEREREN R
REFEEAEBUREESHKA o

RERIHEBEARE  AKEAE
BEXNFTRROKE - MRREE
B BIHMBIHEEENRE -

BE_T-AF+-_A=1t—HLHF
B AKBENELAIBRRERAES
FSRITHERK

BXAEMAR -8 AKENUEE
BELREEE ’L§$ RIAL R
fi& SRR LA E A48 c BARBER
HARBEEAR i’éﬁﬁmf%ﬁﬂm%ﬁ%

o

—EFR-F-ME A
=+ AMAERELENT

A
|

As at 3| December

R+=A=+—-H
2015 2014
=E-1% —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR TR AREFT
Total borrowings (Note 26) fE 42 g8 (f3E 26) 200,000 191,165
Total equity e E ARk 3,197,007 2950619
Total capital B 3,397,007 3,141,784
Gearing ratio EESMELE 5.89% 6.08%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r e PR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HBEBRERGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 DAABEME
As of 31 December 2015, there was no financial instrument carried at fair value. BE_Z-RF+_A=t—H 1
BRENAEBEFNERIE -
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and AZE—RE+=A=1+—R0 5B
liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of such financial HerBEENERBENRRERZE
assets and liabilities. TRMEELEREBBENEHEEmER
DABERE
As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets RZE—NF+-_A=+—H " &
and liabilities carrying fixed interest are as follows: EMEFENCREERBBHNRE
BERAREBENT :
Carrying Value Fair Value
fREE DREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT
Borrowing EE 191,165 191217
Amount due from a third party e — R E=H A 25,500 24,799
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 EBRESTEITRAR

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are addressed below.

et kA B SR EETHE  IRE
BEERIEMAR(BREARBR
THARREHNGERY) -

$EI¥H@MW§H&+&H§£

FHEEFMEER - B HAE
%ﬁﬁ’a;ﬁ%—%ﬁ%mﬂ o ﬁf&ﬂ%@%lﬁz
— BN BRFENHEERARER
BEELEAARER WE.#&{E“‘“‘
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@)  Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's management determines the residual value, useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where residual value or useful
lives are less than previous estimates, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The current

estimated useful lives are stated in Note 2.7.

(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in

the period in which such determination is made.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in which

such estimates are changed.

Dividends derived from the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC earned after
| January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%. The Group
reassessed its needs to make distributions out of its subsidiaries in the PRC. As a
result, withholding income tax has been provided for the undistributed profits to

the extent they are expected to be distributed in future.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

BEEH L R ()

() WER#H
AEEEREETHEYE  BERR
BORAER CRFHRBENE
B o FTERGTAELEE R
BERBRENERFSEERERSF
HEBTRBRAE HAREMENR
BRERRENITEARERMNT
B ZMAETAREERIEZS - BRI
BEAEAFHORER MG B8
ERRESNEERR - M MR
i E@E sk B A &/ IFBRS 1
BE - BAITEE A6 A EIE B
27 e

(b) FrfE®

AEBERZERERRAMAME
B AETHMENEBREFELEX
#E - BZHER 5 Rt B REHK
HMAEE - AEERBEASEEE
HNERTIERERBARIBEZSE
MAE BELEBENEANBEER
BRIRERRZRARNCER 28 BT
BELRTHRANE BRELEREH
BEERBE-

ERBMERKMEF AT ZELE
EYELA MRS NRNETE
BERERBANER °

RZZFZNE—-A—HB%& BALRA
o B B B 2 A ER 1S B RS R 4R 10% 88
MIBNB - AEBEFE T E @ ER
BRAELDIRMFR - B W8
MERBDIRABEN  RIFLARDIK
AL TR SRR -

EHRERR/ARA R FERNANEH

AETERUZRERVAEE - %
RETHEEZRRBOETHREE -



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c)  Impairment review

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in

accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8.1. The recoverable

amounts of CGU have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These

calculations require the use of estimates.

) Goodwill arising from acquisition of a subsidiary — Tiandi Green (Note 10)

The table below summarised the key assumptions used in the goodwill impairment

review and the impacts to the value-in-use calculations upon unfavourable

movements of the key assumptions:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r e PR

eSS R ()

() WEEM
RNEBRBW 28 A&t E
BEANSABERCHBEIMRE B

SELEMMARESERRBERE
B EREET - BRATEEAERM
Eik;

) WERTE L A — KihAR B E LY
EE(Hf7Z 10)
TRBIFEEREENEMANEE
BEERFERZERIFIEE R EE
AEEENTE

Decrease of

Items Assumptions used Movement of key assumptions value-in-use
HH Fr AR FERRED EREERD
(RMB’000)

(AR®F )

Compound annual revenue growth rate  2.00% ~ 6.00% Decrease by 1% 55,334

BRFRAERE W 1%

Long-term growth rate 4.00% Decrease to 3% 50,359

REPBRER WD E3%

Gross margin 45.669%~47.31% Decrease by 5% 135,188

EME 5%

Pre-tax discount rate 14.98% Increase to 15.98% 98,962

BATRAR % SEANZE 1598%

Government subsidy income Continued government subsidy Discontinued government subsidy ['1,267

EGRRETVON

income from 2016 onwards
B - —AFRFERNT
AL A

income from 2016 onwards

BE-Z—1~F
AU A

Based on management's analysis, the goodwill arising from acquisition of Tiandi

Green will not suffer impairment loss upon happening of any one of the above

mentioned changes of key assumptions.

AR IE BT

EREBEEHOON - & LA —
BAEXERRESDHELE  WEXMZ
EMELNAEE TG ELEFAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

4 BRSEITRAEKE)

(CONTINUED)

(c)  Impairment review (continued) ) REER (&)

1) Goodwill arising from investment in an associate — Hjghland Natural Water i) RBERF—FEXSBKGRE
ELHEE

The table below summarised the key assumptions used in the goodwill impairment TEREBAFERERHSAANEE

review and the potential impairment losses arising from unfavourable changes of RERFERXLRINNEDRES

the key assumptions:

HEERERE :

Impairment loss

Items Assumptions used Movement of key assumptions
HE Fr A& TERRED BEEE
(RMB’000)

(AREFT)

Compound annual revenue growth rate  5.43%~24.35% Decrease by 1% 118,297

BaFRAERE 1%

Long-term growth rate 3.00% Decrease to 2% 54,785

REERER W E2%

Gross margin 62.55%-66.00% Decrease by 5% 120,443

EM= B 5%

Pre-tax discount rate 12.70% Increase to 13.70% 113,020

BATRRR & 1EMNZE1370%

Government subsidy income Continued government subsidy Discontinued government subsidy 34,806

EGRRETVON

income from 2016 onwards
B T NFRHEEBN
FHALUA

(d)  Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables.

Management assesses the impairment of trade and other receivables according
to the trade and other receivable's aging, management's prior experience and
customers' conditions as well as applying management's judgments and estimates
when determining the impairment to be recognised. Based on management's best
estimates, there was no impairment noted for the trade and other receivables as at
31 December 2015. Where the basis of judgements and estimates is different from

the initial assessment, such differences will impact the provision for impairment and

the carrying values of the trade and other receivables in the year.

income from 2016 onwards
BT —NFRAR LT
TGN

d) EREZRKREMERTRER
&

BEETURRANRER BEEER
TR B 5 3% B A B W R O BR R
ERENBILRNE P MG RE
RAEEEMHE MG - FHEERE
SR REMBERREFE EREE
BN&REGT R_T—A&F+=A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBHRRHE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 DEBER
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports ERERBEEETSARIEHERAE
reviewed by the Board that are used to make strategic decisions. MBEFKREETE TREEDE
The Group has two business segments, being the production and sales of (1) AEBEEENHEE () mnREER
premium bottled mineral water products, and (2) highland barley beer products. KEE am M (2) B AR R 2 om 1O P 1B 2R 75
8P °
The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on review of BEGENKA - HERERKREN
their revenue, cost of sales and gross profit. ER YKL DR R I EITE Y o
The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for BE_ZT-AF+-_HA=1+—BILHF
the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows: R %ﬁ’% RENEBAATZ28HDH
HDEERIMT
Mineral
water Beer
products products Total
RRKER 163 72 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR ARETR
Total segment revenue DEBA LB 441,366 391,785 833,151
Inter-segment elimination 7> B eI 8 (803) — (803)
Revenue from external customers SRR F KA 440,563 391,785 832,348
Cost of sales SHE R 116,656 213,512 330,168
Gross profit for the year FEEF 323,907 178,273 502,180
Share of profit from associates i) NIV N 21,332 — 21,332
Adjusted EBITDA R CHEE ) BT E R SH AT AR 249,306 211,921 461,227
Finance income/(costs)-net Mighas (BR)  F8 3,259 (13,358) (10,099)
Depreciation and amortisation & R#H (22,789) (53,695) (76,484)
Profit before tax R 0 AT 7 229,776 144,868 374,644
Income tax expenses S BRI X (38,536) (13,037) (51,573)
Profit for the year FEFE 191,240 131,831 323,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5 ZWMERGE)

Mineral
water Beer
products products Total
BRKER W E #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®TR AR®Tr
Segment total assets NEPREE 1,931,318 1,872,067 3,803,385
Investments accounted for using FEREREARNKRE
equity method 1,062,595 — 1,062,595
Additions/(reductions) in non-current FERBEE(NRIFREMEN
assets (exclude deferred income BE)EMm/ ()
tax assets) 486,131 (66,009) 420,122
Inter-segment elimination 5 BB FEl # 84 (367,628)
Unallocated AAE
Deferred income tax assets BIEFRENEE 3,038
Corporate assets rREE 221,696
Total assets REE 3,660,491
Segment total liabilities PR B R 562,898 215,677 778,575
Inter-segment elimination o BRI (366,326)
Unallocated RAE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFMEHAR 38,340
Corporate liabilities it 3L 12,895
Total liabilities BEME 463,484




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for

the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

ﬁ‘t N

PEER ()
E-ZET—NFE+-_A=F+—HIF
B EECERENBEHEUZRD

A EERAT
Mineral
water Beer
products products Total
B RKE m MR E fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Total segment revenue o EBA %R 446,895 329,945 776,840
Inter-segment elimination o BB FEI 8 (4.303) — (4303)
Revenue from external customers HEREFHIRA 442,592 329945 772,537
Cost of sales SHE KA 95712 192,776 288,488
Gross profit for the year FEEF 346,880 137,169 484,049
Share of profit from an associate gl YNV 1,263 — 1263
Adjusted EBITDA AR STTE REHAAE 350,980 184,79 535,771
Financial income-net s - R 3011 1,097 4,108
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (21,819) (52,582) (74,401)
Profit before tax B 35 B R 332,172 133,306 465478
Income tax expenses PSR < (65,030) (15,834) (80,864)
Profit for the year FEFE 267,142 117472 384,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5 ZHMERGE)

Mineral
water Beer
products products Total
BRKEmR neE S E st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®BTR
Segment total assets DEEEE 1,404,607 1,807,094 3211,701
Investments accounted for using FRESEARNIRE
equity method 601,263 = 601,263
Additions/(reductions) in non-current FERBEE(TMBRERTEMENR
assets (exclude deferred income BE)EM/CRd)
tax assets) 591,380 (31,862) 559,518
Inter-segment elimination o ERFEI M (107,026)
Unallocated RAE
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSTHEE 2,524
Corporate assets TEREE 328,662
Total assets HEE 343586l
Segment total liabilities DEBEEE 261,003 280,329 541,332
Inter-segment elimination ) BB Fal # 34 (105,829)
Unallocated KAE
Deferred income tax liabilities ELREHAR 35,835
Corporate liabilities rEAR 13904
Total liabilities mafmE 485,242




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) DEER(E)
Entity-Wide information BEREEE
Breakdown of total revenue is as follows: BTARRRANT
Analysis of revenue by category RERIE D BB A DT 2015 2014
—F-1% —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Sales of goods HEEM 830,297 772,537
Rental of bottled water production line MEKEERNES 2,051 —
Total Mt 832,348 772,537

Revenues from exteral customers of the Group were all derived in the PRC for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets
are all located in the PRC as at 3| December 2015 and 2014.

Revenues of approximately RMB272,674,000 (2014: RMB199,978,000) and
RMB107,350,000 (2014: RMB94,221,000) are derived from two single external

customers. These revenues are attributable to the beer products segment.

HE_Z—AFLK-_ZT—WNE+=A
=+ HUEFEAEEINBEFE R
AN BEFBESE °

R-FB-—AFR-_F-HNFE+_-H
=t—H FRPEE(ERIARE
EFAEREERINGURFE o

AR #272674000L(= T — [T
£ AR#1999780007T ) F1 A R #&
107350000 T(ZE—ME: AR
94,221,000 7T ) K9 UL A 2R B 1A 7 1 1 B
MNBER @ EEWARHEEER
DEBFTELER] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

6 REVENUE
Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales of premium bottled
mineral water products and beer products. The Group also sells bottle preforms
and caps and lease a bottled water production line to an associate and generated

revenue from those activities. Breakdown of the revenue is as follows:

A

SNERE P HIRA R BN HE = im il 5
BRKEMMEEER - AKE TN H
AR E T — R e QR A%
fENRHE - FRRBRKEE
B YRZFEHFIEUA - WA
B4R

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Sales of mineral water products BRKEMEE 388,766 442,592
Sales of beer products EEmIAE 391,785 329,945
Sales of bottle preforms and caps MR KR EHE 49,746 —
Rental of bottled water production line MEMEBBRKEER 2,051 —

832,348 772,537

Revenues from external customers of the Group were derived in the PRC for the
years ended 3| December 2015 and 2014.

7 LAND USE RIGHTS

HE_Z—AFN_ZT-—WE+_A
=+—BIEFEE  AEBHIIBES
R AREHE o

7 LA

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-RA=t—-HLFE

2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

At beginning of year F1) 32,141 32,865
Amortisation charge (Note 28) BB (MEE28) (724) (724)
At end of year FR 31,417 32,141

The Group's interests in land use rights represent operating lease assets. All of the
Group's land use rights are located in the PRC and each has a lease period of 50

years.

REELHERAENESELEEHERE -
REEMA T EAEAMAPE - HEH
BRI E504F o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

8  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8 WX BERRE
Construction
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Others in progress Total
i &2 - E L] Hft  HBIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%T:R
At | January 2014 R-Z-mE-A-A
Cost A 137936 668913 273 4860 35,843 894,045
Accumulated depreciation 25tiE (1766))  (163686) (1292) (13571) - (196211)
Impaiment (a) RG] — 311 — — — 311
Net book amount REFE 120274 502916 1 439 35,051 35,843 695523
Year ended 3| December 2014 HE-Z-m%
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FURERE 120274 502916 439 35,051 35843 695523
Additions RE 7362 2519 206 3216 4021 17,324
Transfer upon completion TREEE = 622! = = (6221) =
Depreciation charges REER (W28 - Mik34)

(Note 28, Note 34) (5.209) (43750) 617 2313) - (51591)
Closing net book amount ERRHFE 122427 467904 1328 35954 33643 661,256
At 31 December 2014 R=2-ME+=A=+-H
Cost A 145,98 677653 2937 51,838 33,643 911,369
Accumulated depreciation Zitihg Q287)  (07439) (1,609) (15.884) — (247802)
Impairment (a) W (2) — @2311) - - - @311
Net book amount REFE 122427 467904 1328 35954 3643 661,256
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e MR RRME

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

8 ME BEKRREBHE)

Construction
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Others in progress Total
i 2 - E L] Hth  ERIRE @t
RMB'O00 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB00  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%Tx
Year ended 3| December 2015 HE=F-1%
TZR=t+-BL%E
Opening net book amount FNREFE 122,427 467904 1,328 35,954 3,643 661,256
Additions RE 2859 1,330 215 674 4,845 4793
Transfer upon completion TREEE 7,233 2393 — — (9,626) —
Depreciation charges REER (W28 - Mik34)

(Note 28, Note 34) (6,560) (44,091) (282) (2741) - (53,674)
Closing net book amount FREHRE 125,959 47536 1,261 33,887 66,862 655,505
At 31 December 2015 R=Z-EF+t=A=t-H
Cost AR 155,390 681,376 3,152 52512 66,862 959,292
Accumulated depreciation it (29431)  (251,529) (1891) (18,625) - (301,476)
Impairment (a) WA () — (2311) — — — 2311)
Net book amount REFE 125,959 4753 1,261 33,887 66,862 655,505




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(@)  Certain idle machineries with the cost amounting to RMB2,978,000 (2014:
RMB2,978,000) were considered obsolete before 2012, and an impairment
provision of RMB2,311,000 (2014: RMB2,311,000) had been made

accordingly based on the assets' fair value less costs to sell.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged to the

consolidated income statement as follows:

8

M - BERRME(E)

@) RIT—ZFi KREAABARKE
2978000 (ZFE—MF : AR
#2978,000 7T ) BVE T E# s
WRIEREE  WIREBEEENAR
EERHEEXAEEELARE
231100 ZFE—MF: AR
# 2,311,000 7C) KRB R o

NE - BEIRBHFECKREA
MR - FEWT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —ET-m%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Cost of sales HHE KA 48,575 47,782
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER 54 71
Administrative expenses THERA 5,045 3,738

53,674 51,591

As at 3| December 2015, the Group was in the process of applying for registration
of the ownership certificates for certain of its buildings with an aggregate net book
value of approximately RMB24,980,000 (2014: RMB23,127,000). The Board is of
the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use these

properties.

There was no interest capitalised in assets under construction for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: nil).

R-ZE-—RE+-A=+—0 K&
B Est B RREFE A AR 24,980,000
T(ZE—WF : AR¥23,127,0007T)
METEFRENEMEREEER -
EEeRARSERREAERRGR
SFERZEME -

BE-_ZT-RA5+-H=1t—HLHF
B BEERZIRERACHNE(ZE
—POE ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9 EREE

Distribution
Trade Name Network Total
(L DERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR®Tn
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-ZE-NE+=-A=1+—H
LEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 56,659 142,151 198,810
Amortisation charge (Note 28) BB (ME28) (3,198) (18,888) (22,086)
Closing net book amount FREERE 53461 123263 176,724
Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ-—F-HF+=-A=+—-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 53,461 123,263 176,724
Amortisation charge (Note 28) BIHE R (FsE28) (3,198) (18,888) (22,086)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 50,263 104,375 154,638

Amortisation of approximately RMB3,198,000 (2014: RMB3,198,000) is included
in the “Administrative expenses” and RMB 18,888,000 (2014: RMB18,888,000) is

included in “Selling and distribution expenses” in the income statement.

HAREE 3,198,000 LR S5 (=T — 1
£ AR#3198,0007T) 5 AFIERE
[1TEER ] mAKE 18,888,000 LA
(T —mF - AR 18,888,000
T RTAFBERNEERDHEBR] -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

10

GOODWILL 0 BE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+-8
2015 2014
—E-RF ke Ut S
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETR AREFT
Goodwill Bk 721,139 721,139

The goodwill of RMB721,139,000 was generated from acquisition of a controlling
stake in Tiandi Green in PRC in 2014. Tiandi Green was viewed as one CGU within
the beer segment. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering an eight-year period when
optimum market share is expected to be reached. Cash flows beyond the eight-

year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2015 and 2014 are as

ARET721,139000 THEEBELER =
T-MEEHEKE T KB
R R EREATERES HA
M—TEREELEMN REELEMN
MAkEeBEHIERNERABENGTE
ET ZETEFRTEREEER
R BETERABZREIREMT
BHEMNFHENMEBENRA
Ren=EdEl B8 \FHENRSE
MEEREFTIERERR o

—E-RER-E-NFEEREED

follows: SAEMEANEERRMT
2015 2014
—Z-4f%¥ —E—-NE
Compound annual revenue growth rate BEFRAERE 2.00%~6.00% 5.00%~7.00%
Long-term growth rate REPERE 4.00% 4.00%
Gross margin EFE 45.66%~47.31% 4145%~45.77%
Pre-tax discount rate HATAR R X 14.98% 15.06%
Government subsidy income [EGEEEEEAON Continued government Continued government
subsidy income from subsidy income from
2016 onwards 2015 onwards
BB -AERE B=E-HFE
BEBR BB
LT ON EIET ON
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Revenue growth rate and gross margin are based on past performance and

management's expectations of market development. The long term growth rates

used are estimated with reference to industry forecasts. The discount rate used is

pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the business.

The Directors are of the view that there was no impairment of goodwill as at 3|
December 2015 and 2014.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 3| December

2015:

Company name
ARERE

Indirectly held:
BE -

Place/date of incorporation/
type of legal entities

HRLkY/ B/
EERREH

10
I
Issued/paid-in capital
B3/ RARE
2015 2014
ZE-3F “5-[F

mE(E)
WAREEREFNRIREBERR
FEBBHMBERNBDE -
AORMERRD2ETERRMG
At FTRMBR R R ARARERE - R
MR EE RS R RV E LR o

EXRAN-_T-RFR-Z-NHOF
T-A=t—BRELEHRRE -

M B A 7]
R-_Z—RF+-_A=+—8 &£
ETXrEMBARNZENT :

Effective interest held
ERfisER

2015 2014 Principal activities
Zg-1fF “R-O0F  IERER

Tibet Zhongi Jiahua Industry
Co, Ltd.
BETREEERYRARLA
Tibet Glacier Mineral Water
Co, Ltd.
Bk I BRKERAT
Beijing 5100 Enterprise
Planning Club Co, Ltd.
LRE-FELRRE
BEBARAR
Tibet Glacier Mineral Water
Marketing Co,, Ltd.
BEKIBERAERERAT

Tibet Tiandi Green Beverage
Development Co, Ltd.

BRABGEARER
BRAT

Wealth Keeper Ltd.

PRC/I January 2004/Limited liability company
hE/-2EMF-A-H/BRAR

PRC/31 October 2005/Limited

liability company
hE/"RRIFTA=T-H/BRAR
PRC/13 July 2007/Limited liability company
tE/“E5tFLAT=A/ERAT

PRC/21 April 2010/Limited liabilty company
t8/ZT-TEMAZT-R/ERAA

PRC/28 April 2009/Limited liability company
hE/ZEENFMAZTN\E/BRAA

Hong Kong/30 October 2012/Limited
liability company

B/ E-ETA=TH/ARLR

USD 16,000,000
16,000,000 £ 7

RMBI 18,000,000
N
118,000,000 70
RMBI,000,000
N
1,000,000 75

RMB3,000,000
N
3,000,000

RMB200,000,000
A%
200,000,000 7

HKDI
BT

USD 16,000,000
16,000,000 T

RMBI 18,000,000
ARK
118,000,0007C
RMB1,000,000
ARH
1,000,0007C

RMB3,000,000
ARH
3,000,00070

RMB200,000,000
ARE
200000,0007C

HKDI
| BT

100% 100%  Investment holding

RERRK
100% 100%  Bottled mineral water
manufacturing and sales
SERHERERRK
100% 100%  Bottled mineral water market

operation and management

BERRKHHEERER

100% 100%  Bottled mineral water
marketing promotion,
distibution and retailing
85 BB AR
ZERERRK

65% 65%  Beer manufacturing and sales

WELERHE

100% 100%  Investment holding
RAER




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

@

Material non-controlling interests
The total non-controlling interest of RMB319,202,000 (2014:
RMB273,098,000) is 35% equity shares for Tiandi Green.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of RMB204,549,000 (2014: RMB321,726,000)
are held in China and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on

exporting capital from the country, other than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-
controlling interests
Set out below is the summarised financial information for Tiandi Green that

has non-controlling interests which is material to the Group.

BB (&)

(@)

BEAFERER
RibFEM3%ER RHE
A ANRE319202000T( =%
—mF : AR®273,098,0007T)
R JEPE R A o

BARH

EHEFERE REBRERAR
#204,549,000C( = ZF — W F :
AR¥32172600070)  BBR
5 HNEE AR E BV HRRR o %
Hh 75 HINEE S 1) S 44 B PO B 1 B AR
TELR S - EE BT BRSEL
AIBRAN

BEEAFAREm #)— B
LA FEEHE
TXEIEAREAMEEERE
RIFERERNR R EH T
BERHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

I SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)  Material non-controlling interests (continued)

i) PNCIIE =)

(@) EXFERERE)

Summarised balance sheet BEBEANE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
R=E-— i R=ZZE—N $
+=ZB=+-8B +ZA=+—
RMB'000 RMB000
AREBTT ARETIT
Current RE
Assets BE 611,309 480,121
Liabilities =R (207,359) (174.816)
Total current net assets RREEEFE 403,950 305,305
Non-current R B
Assets BE 539,622 605,63 |
Liabilities BfE (31,566) (130,656)
Total non-current net assets BIERBEEFE 508,056 474975
Net assets EEFE 912,006 780,280




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

I SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)  Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised income statement

MEBNR(E)
(@) EBERFERERE)
FEZBZ
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
S BE
—E-REF —T—F
+=A=+-B +ZA=t-A
EEFEE EFE
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARBTR ARBTT

Revenue WA 391,785 329,945
Profit before income tax BR P15 B B A B 144,868 133,306
Income tax expense S HiF (13,037) (15,834)
Profit after tax B FIH 131,831 117,472
Other comprehensive income Hin 2wl — —
Total comprehensive income ZEWGER 131,831 117,472
Total comprehensive income allocated to DECEFEERIER D

non-controlling interests FHGERE 46,104 41,115

There is no dividend paid by Tiandi Green in 2015 and 2014.

A ER _—_E—RAER_T—NF
WERMRS
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e MR RRME

I SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) I

(@)  Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised cash flows

MEBLT(E)
(@) EXFERERE)
Year ended

3| December

Year ended

3| December

2015 2014
S BE
—E-FE —ZT—F
T=A=t-8 +=A=t+-A
EEFEE EFE
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARET R ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRER
Cash generated from operations REEFNRE 177,468 228,643
Interest received REVE RS I,166 361
Income tax paid [=ENDZIEE (6,159) (23,683)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETBELNR S FHE 172,475 205,32
Net cash used in investing activities REFHFMANRLFE (234,012) (16,710)
Net cash used in financing activities RETHMANREFE (55,640) —
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBRLEBUORD)
and cash equivalents B (117,177) 188,611
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENNHR e RE2EFED 321,726 133,115
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERNA KRB LEED 204,549 321,726
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations. EERAAREMIER S -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

12 REZEQATNRE

As at 3| December

W+=A=+-8
2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR ARBETT

Opening net book amount FHREFE 601,263

Additions (a) AE (a) 440,000 600,000
Share of profit (Note 34) FEAEFE (F3E34) 21,332 1,263
Closing net book amount FARREFE 1,062,595 601,263

(@)

The amount of investment additions by the Group were as follows:

0

On 5 November 2014 and 29 January 2015, the Group acquired
20% and 3% of the share capital of Highland Natural Water for
a cash consideration of RMB600,000,000 and RMB390,000,000
respectively. Highland Natural Water is a company specialising in the
manufacturing of natural water products. No significant transaction
costs were incurred in the above acquisitions. A notional goodwill
of RMB890,862,000 has been identified as a result of the above

acquisitions.

(@)

AEBREEMSEMT

() RZZE—OmFE+—AAAH
RZE—AF—A=t+nh
B A&EB2RUAAR
# 600,000,000 7C 2 A B #&
390,000,0007T K38 & K B
W BE = R K R 7K 20% K 13%
BIRA - mRRAKE—
RETRNEERRKE R
AR e Rl EE
HEARSGHKA - B Ll
BRECEHNIMEEDE
A AR 890,862,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=a

12

B R R =T

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(continued)

(i

In July 2015, the Group together with Kweichow Moutai established
a company - Moutai 5100. The Group invested RMB50,000,000
as share capital in Moutai 5100, which represented 50% of the
registered share capital of Moutai 5100. Based on the shareholders’
agreement, the Directors of the Company consider that the entity is
an associate of the Company because its strategic operating, investing
and financing activities are controlled by Kweichow Moutai. The main
business of Moutai 5100 is distribution of barrelled water products.
Moutai 5100 started business operations in the last quarter of 2015
and had minimum level of business transactions for the year ended 31

December 2015.

12

RBEQARNRE(E)

@

(%)
(i

RZZ—RFtAH &K
BEEMFAXRMLT
—f2A— % &5100°
AEBERF ASI0KRE
A K #50,000,000 7T 1€ &
A 5 F a51005 fit
P A< B9 50% o 1R 3 A% R
Z ARREERARE
—MgE AR BA
THREEE REMF
BEBEHEEMF AT
HIE - FASIMEEE
BADHEBEKER %
ASIVE-_T—HE&K
BEERHMATHEEE"
EEE-_T—AF+_A
=+-BLFEEELETD
ENEBRS

EEII



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill arising from the acquisition of Highland

Natural Water are as follows:

12 REBERRNREE)
B FEERARBSRRAKE
BB ENHEBOT

Asat 29 Asat5
January 2015 November 2014

(date of acquisition)  (date of acquisition)

R-ZB-4F R-Z—NF

—A=t+hH +—AAA
(KR ) (KEEEH)
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBFT
Purchase consideration: BERE:

— Cash paid —BEfRE 390,000 600,000

Less: share of fair value of net assets acquired W ERETE R R E
(see below) HoABE(RTX) (39,665) (59,473)
Goodwill Gk 350,335 540,527

The goodwill is attributable to Highland Natural Water's strong market position
and profitability in the sales of water products in the market, which cannot be

separately recognised as an intangible asset.

ZAERARRRRAKEHEKE
m % £ E BT S R B R
N BN ERERABNEE -
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12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REEATNREE)
Fair value of net assets acquired: B FEEN A ABE :
As at 29 As at 5

November 2014

(date of acquisition)  (date of acquisition)

January 2015

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. ¢ #RKERERA A

144

R-Z—-1%F R_ZT—EF

—A=thH +—AAH

(KEBH) (WeBERE)

RMB'000 RMB000

I FEENDAEE : ARBTR ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEED 26,576 111572
Inventories rE 11,202 15,764
Trade and other receivables JE B 5 31 I E At FE UK 33,331 68,829
PP&E ME - BB KR E 400,507 391,827
Land use right T e FE 41,494 37,360
Intangible assets BV EE 187,333 196,535
Trade and other payables FERE R R EAMER R (96,576) (159,745)
Borrowings &R (265,000) (270,000)
Dividend to original shareholders FER R AR B (3,882) (64,700)
Deferred tax liabilities BV BE (29,869) (30,076)
Net assets acquired i REE 305,116 297,366
Ownership interest acquired P BE P HEHE 13% 20%
Share of fair value of net assets acquired BiEFUEBFEENAAEE 39,665 59,473

EEEHHUERRRAKASIEN
BAEETHESN - BHENT KD
BLEREREENTEETE - %F
AEERTEREREEM]EN  BE
TERRSBEZEINREMHNEAN
flows beyond the eight-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth FHENMBEENHARERER
rates. Bl BB \FHRNRSRENER
R REHA -

Management performed impairment analysis for the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Highland Natural Water. The recoverable amount of the goodwill is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering an

eight-year period when optimum market share is expected to be reached. Cash



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2015 and 2014 are as

follows:

12 REBERRNREE)
“E-AFR-T-NEEREEN
AEMERNERBROT

2015 2014

—E-5% —E-F

Compound annual revenue growth rate BEFRAERE 5.43%~24.35% 6.87%~21.59%
Long-term growth rate REPERE 3.00% 3.00%
Gross margin EFE 62.55%~66.00% 62.32%~68.77%
Pre-tax discount rate HATER A X 12.70% 12.45%
Government subsidy income EGEEEEEAON Continued government Continued government

Revenue growth rate and gross margin are based on past performance and
management's expectations of market development. The long term growth rates
used are estimated with reference to industry forecasts. The discount rate used is

pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the business.

The Directors are of the view that there was no impairment of goodwill arising
from acquisition of Highland Natural Water as at 3|1 December 2015 and 2014.

subsidy income from
2016 onwards
B-2-AFi
FEBH
LT ON

subsidy income from
2015 onwards
BTt
SEBT
FREUA

BWARRRREMERDREBERR
LEBBHMSERNBDE -
AHRBERRD2ETERRMG
At FTRMBBRRAHAREAE &
PREL A B RV AT T R ©

EERAN T RAER-_T—NE
+-A=+—8 " AkBERRAK
FT S| A2 A 7 23 2 3R R (E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Based on the opinion of the Directors, the Group has one material associate —

Highland Natural Water. Set out below is the information relating to Highland

12 REBERRNREE)
REEZENER  A&EHRE-HE
REBE DA - R RERRAK BRR

Natural Water. RAKEAOER T RET o

Place of business/ % of

country of ownership

incorporation interest Measurement
Name of entity ey LFREE Principal activities method
BEREW A B R EREDL TEEH TRAE
Tibet Highland Natural China 33 Manufacturing and distribution Equity

Water Limited of water products

R = RAAKERAT hE 33 BER D WKEm 1

The share capital of Highland Natural Water consists solely of ordinary shares.

There is no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in Highland Natural

Water.

Summarised financial information for an associate — Highland Natural Water
Set out below are the summarised financial information of the Group's significant

associate — Highland Natural Water, which is accounted for using the equity

method.

BRRBKOBRAGEE R L BRAE
X o I B B R = R R AK
AR ARRE -

BENAMBERYE - SRRAK
TXAER/TEENERYE L RA -
BRRNKOHHEERRE - TIEH
G Ea YN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

12

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information for an associate — Highland Natural Water

(continued)

Summarised balance sheet

RBEQARNRE(E)
/N

BERAPBENRE-SRRAK
(&)
BEREXHE
As at 3|1 December
W+t=A=+—H
2015 2014
“E-IEf —T-lmEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETTT

Current E

Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEM 262,632 38,323
Other current assets HERsEE 50,345 37,144
Total current assets RBEELR 312,977 75,467
Borrowings & (500,000) (15,000)
Other current liabilities HimBafk (106,080) (164,152)
Total current liabilities mBRERSE (606,080) (179,152)
Non-current IR E

Assets BE 689,485 630,101
Borrowings fER — (135,000)
Other liabilities HitnEfE (28,159) (87,733)
Total non-current liabilities FEnRBEEESE (28,159) (222,733)
Net assets REE 368,223 303,683
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information for an associate — Highland Natural Water

(continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

RBELNTNRE(#E)

BENTAMBENBE-FTRRAK
(&

FPHKBEREE

From 5 November

Year ended (date of acquisition)

31 December  to 3| December
2015 2014

Bz BZT—@OmF
—E-AF +—HAH
tTZA=+—-B (KEE®HZE
t¥E +-A=t—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT

Revenue LON 296,677 29,323
Pre-tax profit for the year/period F/BABRB RIS 70,775 7479
Income tax expense FrsBiF < (2,868) (1,162)
Post-tax profit for the year/period F/HRBBERE 67,907 6317
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 E — —
Total comprehensive income 2HKBAE 67,907 6317
Dividends received from an associate HEERATIERRE — —

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements

of Highland Natural Water adjusted for differences in accounting policies between

the Group and Highland Natural Water.

NEBRRBEERRRAKE B R
REMEJNFTE  CRAKEES
RRAKZEGHARENERELT

%5510



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REEATNREE)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information EEHBER N R
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying HENNBEHBEHNEREERS R
amount of the Group's interest in Highland Natural Water: RINVKHE ) BREE ) $ AR

From 5 November
Year ended (date of acquisition)
31 December  to 3| December
2015 2014
Bz BZT—@OmF
—E-AF +—HAH
tTZA=+—-B (KEE®HZE
tFEE +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT

Opening net assets | January R—A—BOFENFEE 303,683 297,366
Profit for the year/period F /R FE 67,907 6317
Closing net assets FERFEE 371,590 303,683
Interest in the associate (2015:33% REEE R AR (ZT—1F - 33% 121,679 60,736
(from 29 January 2015 to 3| December 2015) (BEZZ—AF—A=+hH
and 20% (from | January 2015 E_T-RFt-_A=1+—RH)
to 29 January 2015), 2014:20%) K20%(BEZZE—HF—H—H
E-F-h¥-HA-tAhRA)
—T—IF : 20%)
Goodwil HE 890,862 540,527
Carrying value RHE 1,012,541 601,263
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

13

TRADE RECEIVABLES 13 EWESH

As at 3| December

Wt+=A=+—-H

2015 2014

—E-FE —ZT—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMF T ARBETT

Trade receivables due from third parties KRE=REHN 205,266 332,284

Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables B EKE S RERERER - —

205,266 332,284

Trade receivables represent amounts due from third party customers with good FENE ZRIERKE Btk RIF &

credit history and low default rates. HEENE=AEPHRIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

I3 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's trade receivables were all

denominated in RMB. The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

BRESZR (&)
R-FB-—AFR-_FB-HNE+=A4
=t—B ARENEKEZRHA
ARBHE - BUE SRR KRE DT
LN

As at 3| December

W+=A=+-8
2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR ARBETT

Within 6 months 6fEAA 22,732 147,890
Over 6 months but within | year iR e EAETHA F 89,115 699
Over | year but within 2 years iR | FETBR2F 86,377 182,267
Over 2 years A2 F 7,042 1,428

205,266 332,284

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, no trade receivables were impaired and
provided for, the carrying amounts of the above trade receivables approximated

their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amounts
of trade receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as

security.

RZE-—RAFRZFT-—OF+A
=+—H BEENEKESTRE
RERE LAEKESFNEEE
HEAAEBEMES -

REABMNRBEERRA LIEEK
HEHNERE  A&EYEREE
AR IERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

14 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

@

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

The contractual credit terms based on written sales contracts with customers

are range from | to 6 months.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

can be assessed by reference to the nature of counterparties or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

TRHEENFEEE

RBHEERENSHEE
ANEERENETFNEEH
E6H  NF—EXRMER -

AEHABRENSREENE
BEER2EHTNMEREE
AL R L B RUETTRIAS -

As at 3| December

R+=A=t+—H
2015 2014
=E-1% —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade receivables EWE SR ARETR AREFIT
— Group | —FI4 88l 5324
— Group 2 —%24 5,159 20,859
6,040 26,183

As at 3| December

R+t=BA=+-—H
2015 2014
—B-REF —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Other receivables HinEWR AR¥T R ARET T
— Group | -F 14 50,006 28,244
— Group 2 -£24 37,695 15,462
87,701 43,706

Group | —new third parties/related parties (less than 6 months).

Group 2 — existing third parties/related parties (more than 6 months) with

no defaults in the past.

EIR-MBEE=F/BBA
(LRefEA) -

F2HE-BHEEBENTENES
FE=71/ B (BBeEA) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

14 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial assets past due but not impaired
As at 3| December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
RMB 199,226,000 (2014: RMB306,101,000) were past due but not impaired.

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

14 EWMEENFEEESE)

(b)

CRHEERAENESRMEE
RZZ-—AF+ZA=+—8"
ERHEERENERE SN
# A AR 1992260007 (=
T—-mF: AR®306101,000
7)o ZERWE HHHREKR D
T

As at 31 December

W+=A=t+—H
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETTT

Over credit term but within 6 months HBREEHETEREA 16,692 121,707
Over 6 months but within | year Hide A BT ER | F 89,115 699
Over | year but within 2 years il | FENER2F 86,377 182,267
Over 2 years iR F 7,042 428

199,226 306,101

As at 31 December 2015, no other receivables were past due nor impaired
(2014 nil).

R-ZE-hF¥+-A=+—-8"
BEE RSB SRE(=
% ) -
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SE BB ERR M

I5 PREPAYMENTS I5 FESFIE

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+-H
2015 2014
—®-IfF —EFmEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Prepayments made for purchase of raw materials, BERMH - RER
services, and equipment BTN EANEA 25,063 19,506
Prepaid value added tax BREER 2,671 1,304
27,734 20810
Less: Non-current portion o EnE s
Prepayments made for purchase of equipment (a) BERBHENTA ) (6,792) (5,035)
(6,792) (5,035)
Current portion mEN D 20,942 15,775

@ HEEHREABERE (EMA
ERAES) MENKFUR -

(@)  These balances represent prepayments made for the purchase of equipment,

the ownership of which has not been obtained.

mBRIERB AN FENREAEBAT
NEHEE -

The carrying amounts of current and non-current prepayments are denominated in

the following currencies:

As at 31 December

TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. ¢ #RKERERA A

154

Wt+=A=+—-H
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTT
- RMB N 25,828 20203
— HKD —B7 44| 458
~USD o 1,381 63
— Swiss Franc ("CHF") — DA ([ AR 84 86
27,734 20810




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBHRRHE
16  OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS l6 HttEWRARAEMEE
As at 31 December
R+=B=t+—-8
2015 2014
—®-IfF —F-mF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBTTT
Deposits ik 1,243 2,068
Interest receivable R 8 — 4426
Amounts due from third parties (a) FEWE =5 30E (a) 62,599 30,756
Amounts due from an associate (b) (Note 36) JEE Wi 5 2 B 3RIA (b) (B3 36) 21,321 2,134
Others it 2,538 4322
87,701 43,706
Less non-current portion: BIEREN R 7 -
Amount due from third parties (a) FEWE = 75 507E (a) — (14,000)
Deposits il (360) (1,112)
(360) (15,112)
Current portion REEBD 87,341 28,594
(a)  The balance includes the following items: (@) RHABENATIER

— amounts due from a third party company of RMB12,599,000 (2014:
RMB I 1,500,000), which representing loan principal of RMBI 1,500,000
(2014:RMB11,500,000) and accrued interest of RMBI,099,000 (2014:
nil). The loan is at fixed interest rate at 6% per annum and contractual

maturity date on 31 December 201 6.

— amounts due from another third party company of RMB50,000,000
(2014: nil) with a fixed interest rate at 10% per annum and contractual
maturity date on 28 December 201 6.

EW—FE=F A RHA
AR ¥ 12599000 (=F
—H4F : AR 11,500,000
) EREAEARE
11,5000007c(= & — M
F: A K #11500000
TIREFHMEARE
1,099,000 7C( =T — M4 :
) EFETEF X6
B &3 HAAR-Z
—~NE+-A=+—-H-

W E—HE=F QAR
1B A R #50,000,000 L=
T—mE:T) BEFEHM
KI0E - ARNIEBMBE A
E—RFt+-_A=+N\H-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

16 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) l6 HtEWRREMEREZ)

(b)  This balance represents amounts due from Highland Natural Water. They

were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the

carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold

any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of current and non-current other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

WEREE

b) HEHRBERSRRAKTE
HFURRERE - &S AE

REERERAHMASENRREER
BB m D EWARNEREE - A

SEYER A TAEARESER -

TR :

8D N FR I Bh L b & W 3K A0 BR TE B DA

As at 3| December

R+=HA=+—8H
2015 2014
—F-n% —B-MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFIT
—RMB - AR 87,300 38724
— HKD —BTT 391 4973
—-UsD —%7T 10 9
87,701 43,706




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBBRRMET
17 INVENTORIES rE
As at 3| December
R+=—HA=+-—8
2015 2014
“E-5F —E—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Raw materials R 52,171 49223
Finished goods R 16,096 18,455
Work in progress E&m 4,261 4,643
72,528 65321

The cost of inventories which was recognised as an expense and was included in
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately RMB315,630,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB277,630,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories did
not exceed the net realisable value, and no provision for decline of the value of

inventories was made.

BE-T—RFT-A=+—HL#HF
B BRAERILAIEERAR K
FEMALBARE315630,000T(=
T—F : AR¥277,630,0007T) °

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—H K&
EEENREEY B Z2RF
& MERREEEER D E &
f& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

I8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BeRBRLEEY
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2015 2014
—®-IfF —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Cash on hand FHEES 845 618
Cash at bank RITER 627,287 762,791
628,132 763409
Denominated in: HEEE
—RMB — AR 619,257 747,532
—UsD —%7T 2,504 993
—HKD —AT 6,364 14,876
— Others —Hh 7 8
628,132 763,409

As at 3| December 2015, the Group's cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately RMB610,204,000 (2014: RMB743,584,000) were held in the
financial institutions located in the PRC. The remaining amounted to approximately
RMB17,928,000 (2014: RMB19,825,000) were held in major financial institutions

located in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of the foreign currencies out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules

and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC govemment.

The Group eams interests on cash at bank at floating bank deposit rates, which
range from 0.35% to 3.3% per annum for the year ended 3| December 2015 (2014:

range from 0.06% to 3.6%per annum).

RZE—RE+-_A=+—H K
SENHERBREEEMHARE
610204000TL(Z T —MHF: AR
743,584,000 7T ) R TE P BU A S BB
B-BTHARKE17928000L(=F
—F : AR¥19,8250007T) AEE
BRTRENEZCHEERS -

AARBHENERLARINEAR
ROMNS R BIE L - B8 BBF
BT B0 AR B SME B IR Al AR

AEBRIHRITERFIERRITE
AEEAE  BE-_FT-RAFET+=A
S+ —HLEFE - BAFRENT
035 EBEE(ZT—WF: FFX
NF006EE36E)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

19 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 19 BRERRGGE
Equivalent
Number of Nominal nominal
ordinary value of value of
shares ordinary ordinary Share
(thousands) shares shares premium Total
HERYE HER LER
(TR) REE RAESE RiaE At
HKD’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TEn ARBTRr ARMTR ARET:R
Balance as at | January and “E-MER-T-0F
31 December 2014 and 2015 —R—-BRTZA=1-H
kg 2,568,893 25,689 21363 1,206,829 1,228,192
20  RESERVES 20 f#fE
Statutory
Capital surplus  Translation
reserve reserve  differences Total
EERER
ENE NEE HHEES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®ETR
Opening balance | January 2014 —E-NE-A—H
M E &R 146,012 102,763 (53,250) 195,525
Currency translation differences INEFTEERR — — (766) (766)
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserve (a) REVEERBARE (2 — 15423 — 15423
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—MF
+=-HB=+-—H 146,012 118,186 (54016) 210,182
Opening balance | January 2015 —E-H¥-A—-H
HED LR 146,012 118,186 (54016) 210,182
Currency translation differences SNETE Z 5 — — 4,391 4,391
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserve (a)  REUVAERHAEE (a) — 20,696 — 20,696
At 31 December 2015 R-Z2-I1F
+=—A=+—H 146,012 138,882 (49,625) 235,269
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20

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

@

According to the provisions of the articles of association of the Group's
subsidiaries located in PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries shall
first set aside 109 of its profit attributable to owners after tax as indicated in
their statutory financial statements for the statutory surplus reserve (except
where the reserve has reached 50% of the entity's registered share capital)
each year. PRC subsidiaries may also make appropriations from its profit
attributable to shareholders to a discretionary surplus reserve, provided it is
approved by a resolution passed in a shareholders” general meeting. These
reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they
are created and are not distributable as cash dividends without the prior
approval obtained from the shareholders in a shareholders’ general meeting

under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not sufficient to make good for any
losses of the PRC subsidiaries from previous years, the current year profit
attributable to the owners shall be used to make good the losses before any

allocations are set aside for the statutory surplus reserve.

The statutory surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve and the
capital reserve of the PRC subsidiaries may be converted into share capital
of the PRC subsidiaries provided it is approved by a resolution passed in a
shareholders' general meeting and meets other regulatory requirements with
the provision that the ending balance of the statutory surplus reserve does

not fall below 25% of the registered share capital amount.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors of the PRC subsidiaries
proposed the appropriations amounting to approximately RMB20,696,000
(2014: RMB15,423,000) to statutory surplus reserve.

20

(&)

(@)

RBEARE B L7 T B RO 8 2 B
([HEMEAR AT
Bl - REINB A REGFE
EEMBREATEREAR AEG
RETEE 0% BIEEEBHBA
Be(E B EEREMMK
AK50%E BRI o ohEIKE AR
A HERBRRASBBAIRESR
HAERKEBREEMERIEER
BHLEE - BRABERUMNA
HIN  ZEF RSN S RERL
R BRERERR KRR
RERAE EE RN - TR
SRERERENEK -

EEERHABS TRARMHT
B B 2 B DA BT F B 1R - A
FENERARGNEAERR
ETE BB AR S AR (E A&

e

FEEARKEERBR DA
2 EERHARENREAR
B ELRRASEBNR
BERUHEANSEMEERET
BRAERK  BEROEERS
ARG NE DR MR A S B
25%

BE-_ZT-R¥+-HA=+—H
HEE  HENBARNERE
ZRDAKENEERHBOES
4B AR 2069000 (=F
—F : AR¥ 15423,0007C) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21 EERS
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: EEHBEEERELEHEA RN DN
LN

As at 3| December

Rt=ZA=+—-H
2015 2014
—E-REF —T—pF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Deferred tax assets: EEREBEE .
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months —NEAABKEMETERESE 2,597 [,969
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months ~ — 1218 A AU Bl H3EEFi I8 & = 44| 555
3,038 2,524

Deferred tax liabilities: ELEHBEE

— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after 12 months  — 838 12 18 A & W= &

ELEHEAR (21,027) (23324)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months — 12 18 A AR B REETR B & (& (17,313) (12511)
(38,340) (35,835)
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SE BB ERR M

2|

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

21

The gross movement on the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as

follows:

EEFRGH(E)

BLERABERBELEHERENE

A

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTT
Deferred tax assets: ELEREEE
At beginning of year F4] 2,524 8,398
Income statement credit/(charge) MERAA(EL) 514 (5,874)
At end of year FR 3,038 2524
Deferred tax liabilities: BEEHREEE:
At beginning of year F1) (35,835) (50,218)
Income statement charge FERFA (12,994 (3,595)
Settlement of withholding tax for dividend declared E TR SEZEMH 10,489 17,978
At end of year FR (38,340) (35,835)
The net charge to income statement is as follows: FERECFREET
Year ended 3| December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2015 2014
—E-1% —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Deferred tax assets EENIBEE (514) 5874
Deferred tax liabilties EEHIBRE 12,994 3,595
MERETFEME3) 12,480 9,469

Net charge to income statement (Note 31)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmRME
21  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 21 EBERBHRE)
The balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2015 were RZE—RAF+-A=+—H " &L
not offset because the deferred tax assets and liabilities related to income taxes MEBEEERBBEARLAREE 1A
were levied by different taxation authorities. The movement in deferred income tax REZEELEHEEEREBERHN
assets and liabilities during the year is as follows: FRIGHi B A AR B H AR - FAR
EREREERAGBNESIT -
Undistributed Other
Provisions for Deferred Accrued  profits from  temporary
impairment income expenses  subsidiaries differences Total
RENE
NEM Al
RERE BEWE RRER AORNE HENEEZ @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
At [ January 2014 RZZE-mE-HA—H 347 781 5621 = 649 8,398
Income statement charge MERIA — (110)) (5621) — (143) (5874)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-ME+-A=1-H 347 1,671 — — 506 254
Income statement credit MERER — 351 — — 163 514
At 3| December 2015 RZF-RF+-A=1—H 347 2022 — — 669 3,038
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEaE
At | January 2014 RZZ-ME-A-H = = = (17.978) (32,240) (50218)
Income statement (charge)/credit FIER (GtA)/ B2 — — — (10489) 6,894 (3595)
Settlement of withholding tax B2 B IRAR S A& E FE T
for dividend declared = = = 17978 = 17978
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+-A=1-H — — — (10,489) (25,346) (35,835)
Income statement FBRGIA) /&R
(charge)/credit — — — (15,200) 2,206 (12,994)
Settlement of withholding tax B EL B IR AR S AE E FE B
for dividend declared — — — 10,489 — 10,489
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-R§+-A=1-H — — — (15,200) (23,140) (38,340)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

2|

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015, as the Company's certain subsidiaries’ future taxable
income would not be available against which their temporary losses could be
utilised and also the losses of those subsidiaries would not be offset by the taxable
income of other subsidiaries within the Group, as there is no legally enforceable
right to do so. As such, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of RMB7,705,000 (2014: RMB8,447,000) in respect of losses amounting
to RMB32,738,000 (2014: RMB35,707,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. Losses of RMB32,738,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB35,707,000) are expiring on the following dates to offset the future taxable

21

EEFTEH(E)

RZE—RAE+=-A=1+—H &2
AR5 T 08 2 B #) R R B R B A
BEZBEENESE MZENE
REMEBEBTIREASEEMBHER
AR ERTRAEE  BERAYTARE
ERMOE AT REIMITERN o @R
SEVERATEBERRERTLAD
BiE AR #32,738000m(=Z — MM
£ ARM35707,0007C ) BERIE LT
BHEEARE 77050007 (=Z—M

income:
F: AR¥B4470007T) e R-ZT—A
FTZA=T—AEBEREERTK
AH) AR #3273800070(= & — /M
F: AR¥35707,00070) M EIRER
JEmBEFI AT
Year ended 3| December
HE+-HA=t+—-HLEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Expiring in RUTFEER
-2015 —-—T—RF — 2969
-20l6 —ZE—REF 11,375 11,375
-2017 ——T—tF 10,568 10,568
-20l8 ——F-)\%F 10,795 10,795
32,738 35,707

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMBI | 1,748,000 (2014: RMB104,844,000)
had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the distributable retained profits amounting to RMBI, 118,393,000 (2014:
RMB1,048,444,000) of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group has no
intention to distribute these retained eamnings out from the subsidiaries in the PRC

in the near future.

RRB)WEL TR E QRS 5K
REBEFARE,118393,000L(=F
—MF: AR 1,048444000 7T ) &
NENMREREEAEHRABARK
[11,748000L(ZZE—ME: AR
104,844,0007T) ° AEE B AL NTE
R B[R AP BSRSNHE B A R 9 R A
REBRF o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

22 DEFERRED REVENUE AND ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM
CUSTOMERS (CURRENT)

22

EEWARFAREFR(RE)

As at 3| December

W+=A=+-H
2015 2014
—E-Ef —TmE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBTT
Deferred revenue EAERA
— Sales of water cards —HEKR 27,826 33,247
— Government grant (Note 23) — BUR# B (M 5E 23) 1,692 6,384
Advances received from customers HRE P K 15,350 27413
44,868 67,044
Less: non-current portion: B IEMENE S -
sales of water cards (Note 23) HEKR (M 23) — (6,649)
Current portion e 44,868 60,395

As at 3| December 2015 and 2014, the Group's deferred revenue and advances

received from customers were all denominated in RMB.

RZE-—HFER-_Z-DNE+_H
=t—B ARENETRAREK
EPREHAARSBE -

Annual Report ¢ £ & 2015

165



TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. ¢ #RKERERA A

166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

23  DEFERRED REVENUE (NON-CURRENT)

23 ERERA(ERE)

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2015 2014
—®-IfF —EFmEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT
Government grant B e B 23,750 30,585
Less: current portion (Note 22) B omEE s (MEE22) (1,692) (6,384)
Add non-current portion: sales of water cards MIEREBES - HEKK
(Note 22) (BfzE22) — 6,649
Non-current portion kBB 22,058 30,850
24 TRADE PAYABLES 24 EHEZIX
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2015 2014
—EB-IF —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT
Trade payables ERNEZN 72,827 117,340




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

24 TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 24 BENEZIRE)

R-_Z—RF+-_A=+—8 " Ef
DS RNRRSITMT

As at 31 December 2015, the aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:

As at 3| December

W+=—HA=+-—H
2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Within 45 days 458 AR 41,623 49,797
Over 45 days but within 6 months 83845 BB N6 A 21,391 61,790
Over 6 months but within | year HiRefE BB ER | F 7,774 3,707
Over | year but within 2 years il FE EEF 1,092 1,276
Over 2 years @2 LA | 947 770
72,827 117,340

RZE-—HAFER-_Z-—ONE+_H
=t—B ARENENEZRHNU
ARBHERL TR -

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's trade payables were all

denominated in RMB and were not interest bearing.

25  ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 FEREARHMEMNR

R+=A=+-H
2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®TR ARBTT
Salary payables ERN#EE 7,306 1,127
Welfare payables R A 4,375 1,628
Value added tax and other taxes payables ERBED R E MR 5,041 5789
Accrued expenses BRER 5,486 11,122
Other payables HAt R 42,625 19,991
64,833 49,657
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e MR RRME

25

26

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the accruals and other payables are denominated in the

following currencies:

25 BREARAEMEMRGE)
BIRER R EMEN R REETIA

TSR -

As at 3| December

Wt+=A=+—-H
2015 2014
—E-REF —T—pF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT
~RMB - AR 59,245 42,308
~UsD -X7T 2,105 3,003
- HKD -8B 3,483 4,346
64,833 49,657
BORROWINGS 26 fERK
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—-H
2015 2014
—2-1F ZT-MEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBTT
Non-current FRE
Long-term borrowing from government — Unsecured REIBUF A — EE A — 91,549
Current B
Current portion of long-term borrowing from government & ERERATE 518 BN HZE 2
— Unsecured — R4 — 99,616
Current portion of long-term borrowing from RERITEFHIEIEEE S
bank - Unsecured (a) — IR ) 150,000 —
Short-term borrowing from bank - Unsecured (b) RITHRE HE R — EEH(b) 50,000 —
Total borrowings EE7€ L 200,000 191,165




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR R M

26 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

All borrowings were denominated in RMB as at 3| December 2015.

(@)

The borrowing was granted to Tiandi Green by a bank with principal amount
of RMB200,000,000. The borrowing was guaranteed by Tibet Glacier
Mineral Water Co,, Ltd. (“Tibet Glacier Mineral Water"), a subsidiary
of the Group. The interest rate was based on the directive interest rate
announced by the People’s Bank of China. The tenure of the borrowing is
from 28 January 2015 to 27 January 2017. According to the agreement, the
borrowing should be repaid based on the following schedule: repayments
of RMB50,000,000, RMB50,000,000 and RMB 100,000,000 on 27 July 2015,
27 January 2016 and 27 January 2017 respectively. The first RMB50,000,000
has been repaid in 2015. Due to certain contractual arrangements of the
borrowing, the bank has the potential right to request for repayment of the
loan before the contractual maturity dates. Accordingly, the outstanding
borrowing amounting to RMB150,000,000 was recorded as current liability
at 31 December 2015. The effective interest rate of the borrowing during
year 2015 was 3.45%.

The borrowing was granted to Tibet Glacier Mineral Water by a bank with
principal amount of RMB50,000,000. The interest rate was based on the
directive interest rate announced by the People’s Bank of China. The tenure
of the borrowing is from 2 November 2015 to | November 2016. The

effective interest rate of the borrowing during year 2015 was 2.35%.

The Group had no undrawn borrowing facilities as at 31 December 2015 and

2014.

The carrying amount of borrowings approximate their fair values.

26
n=

B (&)

—AFtZA=+—H8 &%

ﬂMAEMﬁ@o

(@)

A —
N
J\_

ERXIE-—MRTR TR
e KeeBAARE
200,000,0007C ° fE XA A& B
B — P B A ) — FE 5Kk )| 8
FKAR A B (R K &R
KDEER MEXUAPBEAR
RITAHAO BB MR BIKIE -
%ﬁ%ﬁ;?—ﬁi—ﬁ +N
Az-_2—+t&—A-++
B REHZE BRERUAT
AEEE: PRR-_Z—AF
+BA=-++tHB  —T—R"EF—
A-Zt+ttBRk=_ZE—+tF—A
—+tRHEEAR%50000000
7T+ AR#50,0000007T K AR
100,000,000 ° BEE AR
50,000,000 TER - ZE—RFE
B mNERNELERZYE
ZRITHEBEERIEB 2R EX
ERETOETER - Bt - =
KB & & XA K % 150,000,000
TRZZE—R&+=-A=+—H
BAERHEE T -HFEX
B BB F R R 3.45% °

1ETQ\EEE_F‘?§E ﬁ%@ﬁﬂk
NBRK KEEEAARE
50,000,000 7T © | & LA B A K
RITRDMHIEEHFIE BIKIE -
ExpA—T—RF+—HA=H
EZ—RF+—HA—HB -ZF
— R FERHERFIEA235% °

—RER-_Z—WNE+=A

=t—FB AREYERKRRROE
A o

1 E’/\Eﬁ%ﬁ{

REERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27

OTHER GAINS, NET

27

HiFE - B

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLEFE

2015 2014

—®-IfF —F-mF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AREFT

Government grants (a) B8 (a) 37,825 154,002

Gain on disposal of AFS (Note 34) HE A E S R E E R s

(P5E34) 6,732 17,850
Others HAh (154) (70)
44,403 171,782

(@  The amount mainly related to the government grant received by the Group.
According to “TERHE [1997] No. 24", “BEAF [2010] No. 93", “hr
FETEEF [2010] No. 29" and “HIFHTEEF [2012] No. 101", the Group

is eligible to receive subsidy income from the local government in relation

to the domestic subsidiaries' fiscal contribution to the local economic

development as a major tax payer and employer in Tibet. The Group

recognised such income of approximately RMB26,040,000 for the year
ended 3| December 2015 (2014: RMB143,488,000).

(@)

ZREFEHRAEERBHBA
BN AERR - ARRIBEU[1997)
#2455 | [# 8 £ F[2010]%
93%% |~ [H 7 B B F[20101 5
29%% | K[ 47 B4 B B 7201215
1015% |- REBEARERERK
IEMBERREET BEKE
BEBARANB AR R A L
T R 1E 0 7S B R A3 77 I
FREBKA - REEREZE=
Z-RE+-_A=F+—HItHF
ERANULBRADBARE
26040000 L(ZZ—MF : AR
#5143488,0007C) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

28

EXPENSES BY NATURE

28

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and

administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BEHEESNER

MRS AHERA - HERS B

ERRITRERNER !

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2015 2014
—E-Ef —T—pF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Raw materials and consumables used P FR R BT R} e 240,024 212419
Decrease/(Increase) in the balances of ERmRERmTERS
inventories of finished goods and work in progress md,/ (HE) 2,681 (4,468)
Transportation costs ERKAR 51,816 57,019
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 8) Mm%  BERXENE (Miits) 53,674 51,591
Employee benefit expenses (Note 29) EERANER (MF29) 76,500 64,220
Advertising and marketing expenditure BERTSEEER 14,002 16,639
City construction tax and education surcharge WmERERHEHME 12,424 11,431
Electricity and other utility expenses BENREMEERER 9,715 9,329
Rental expenses HeBH 4,426 7,960
Consulting and other service expenses AR E MRS ER 4,474 10,425
Repair and maintenance R RRE 3,154 2,022
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) T AR (Fat7) 724 724
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) BREESHE (H9) 22,086 22,086
Auditor's remuneration A Gl A 6,450 7,000
— Audit services — B R 6,050 7,000
— Non-audit services —IEE AT IR 400 —
Exploration rights expenses RiEEER 548 500
Office and consumption expenses MRFREFEE R 6,872 12,332
Others Hity 3,770 2983
513,340 484,212
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=a

29

B R R =T

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 29 EERANER
Year ended 3| December
BE+t-A=t—HLEFE
2015 2014
—E-Ef —F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BT ARBTTT
Wages and salaries ITERHF® 64,454 55,800
Provision for medical and other employee benefits BEMEMESRNEE 3,382 2811
Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme (a) 7 HEFRIKE 5T 2K (2) 5,039 3,639
Contributions to the housing scheme (b) EETEIE (b) 3,625 1,970
76,500 64,220
(@)  Pension scheme @) RIKEFE
The Group pays contributions to publicly administered pension insurance AEERRT  ARNELERAE
plans on a mandatory, contractual basis. The Group has no legal or BRRRERBETEEL MR o
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not MZEEWREMEEXNAE
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee EERAHHEKATHEEME
service in the current and prior periods. The contributions are recognised BRBAGNEN  AEETRE
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are E—SHREEE TR ©
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the RN B R R R R 8 A5
future payments is available. X o BRHRERBRGRER S
FBERNFORDER TR R
BE -
(b)  Housing scheme (b) FEEE

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group is
required to make contributions to the Chinese state-sponsored housing
fund at 10% of the salaries of the PRC employees. At the same time, the
employees are also required to make a contribution at 10% of their salaries
out of their payroll. The employees are entitled to claim the entire sum of

the fund under certain specified withdrawal circumstances.

RETREESHEREER K
SEVARTEREH SR 10%
AT BERFEBNERE R B
HHR - R - BEMAREH
SRERIBERER - EET
REBET  EEFRRNERE
HER B HMR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME
29  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 29 EERFNEBRAE)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (0 TEEESFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group AEEAREREGRTMAL
for the year include three (2014: three) directors whose emoluments are BEZZ(ZZ—NF: =%)E
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 40. The emoluments paid and 2 RENMEERIEE406
payable to the remaining two (2014: two) individuals during the year are as 2SR - REFEF K
follows: BNTHSBMA(ZT—EF :
mE) AR A LB :
Year ended 3| December
BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2015 2014

—2-hF —FT-mF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Basic salaries and allowances BERF ¢ K2R 2,154 2,124

Bonuses TE4T 39 155

2,193 2,279

The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeNFUTEHE :
AR ALEE
Number of individuals
2015 2014
— ks

Emolument bands

HKD 1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000
(approximately RMB800,00 |
to RMB1,200,000)

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
(approximately RMB 1,200,001
to RMBI,600,000)

< & [E

1,000,001 7 JCE 1,500,000 7 7T

(#I AR ¥ 800,001 TZ

AR 1,200,0007T) 2
1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T

(AR 1200001 TE

AR¥ 1,600,000 7T) —
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e MR RRME

30 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET

31

30

MKW A - FE
Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLEFE

2015 2014

—®-IfF —EFmEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTF T ARBTT

Foreign exchange losses, net (Note 34) BRI - FE (HIEE34) (5,683) (1,681)
Interest costs on a borrowing from government B e EN KA (8,836) (8,084)
Interest costs on borrowings from bank FITEEF B (5.810) —
Other finance costs Hb B %5 & A (167) (105)
Finance costs HMKER (20,496) (9,870)
Interest income FE WA 10,397 13978
Finance income upr 3 ON 10,397 13978
Finance (costs)/income, net B (ER) WA FE (10,099) 4,108

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 31 FABHER

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

A

AT REGENBRIAANAERE

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

Current income tax

Deferred income tax charge (Note 21)

=R N
RIEFSHFIS (BaE21)

Income tax expense

FSHER

2015 2014
—F-n% —EFmF
RMB'000 RMB000
AR®T R ARBTR
39,093 71,395
12,480 9,469
51,573 80,864




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 31 FRSMER(E)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AEBNRAAEHAIFESNBIES
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate as follows: RIRERFEE B R et B15 H A IR R &
Bosma
Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2015 2014
—2-hF —FT-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Profit before income tax BR P S 25 AT A 374,644 465,478
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 15% BEEBE 5%t EHFIE 56,197 69,822
Preferential tax rates on income of ETEEERBNRAMER
certain group entities (a) HEEHE ) (25,135) —
Income not subject to tax BT A S (1,920) —
Tax on deemed revenue BIERARNTE 298 329
Tax losses of certain group entities for which no I RIR AL TS B B AR
deferred income tax assets were recognised ETEEERNNIEER 2,316 1,464
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ER7T Z AR RERBEEL — (685)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TR E R 4617 3378
Re-measurement of deferred tax — change in B EIRTERIE — NER X
Lhasa tax rate from 5% to 9% (year 2015 to 2017) B 15%E B 9%
(ZZ—hFE-T—+F) — (3933)
Withholding tax from distribution of IR 2 Rl B A
profits by the PRC subsidiaries P EE £ ORI 15,200 10,489
Income tax expense FrHiE A 51,573 80,864
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31

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The weighted average tax rate was |3.8% for the year ended 3| December 2015
(2014: 17.4%).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Under current laws of the
Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or other taxes
payable by the Company. The group entities established under the International
Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British

Virgin Islands income taxes.

The group entities incorporated in the PRC are subject to PRC enterprise income
tax. Major operational entities of the Group are located in the Tibet Autonomous
Region of the PRC and were entitled to preferential income tax rate of 9% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 15%); the remaining entities incorporated in
the PRC were taxed based on the income tax rate of 25% for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: 25%) as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC
income tax rules and regulations. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the

rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%).

(@) Based on the tax ruling announced by the PRC central tax authorities, the
corporate income tax rate of Lhasa is 9% for year 2015 to 2017 and from
2018 onwards, the corporate income tax rate will resume to 5% if no
further announcement of preferential tax treatment is made. The relevant
deferred tax balances had been measured based on the expected tax rates

applicable in the future.

31

FREBEBERE)
BE-ET-AF+-HA=+—HItE
B MEFHRHERA138% (ZT—M
1 |74%) o

ARARRFEHESEMAL - REFS
BERITER  ARRSBEMELM
B - BER - AR - EAEERK
HBIA - RIFRE R LR &R Bl
BRRDERI NS BB RBERRHIR
BR LB SHFEH -

TErp Bl S ) S B B B /R S A )
CEMRSH -BHE-_ZT-—HFE+_-A
=+—BLFE  AEEURTEHEA
FERAENTEEEERZTII% (=
TN : 15%) RFTEHERHE
HEHHERNPREEMAUAEEREE=
Z—RF+-A=+—BLFERE
FEREE R BT S B4R Al R AR B2 25% 8
FrefiE (Z2—EF : 25%) & -
EEMNEHOK65% (ZT—UF :
16.5%) EIFLEEHE o

@ REPEPRBEELEDHET
RO - NENDEMERHX
RZE-—RFE_T—tFAH
9% BZE—/\FIE - InEE—
FRHEBHBESE - QXM
BRHERGIREZE15% - HEAE
ERIBAERCDBEEHRBRZE
FAETE T LAFTE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PBBmRME

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE 32 BRER
Basic and diluted L9958 §-1
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of BRERBNNAETER - NARE
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during BEANEEFEARFBRARFEEBEITE
the year. BRI
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share since the HRARARBE_Z—HFR=-F
Company has no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the years ended 31 —ME+_A=T—BLEFEIEE
December 2015 and 2014. HEL AR ReREERNRERE
ABEFIES -
Year ended 3| December
BEt-A=+t—-HLEE
2015 2014
—F-0%F —TF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AREHEE AEGFE
(RMB'000) (AR¥ETFTT) 276,967 343499
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITT B MNET ISR
in issue (thousands) (PAFED) 2,568,893 2,568,893
Eamings per share (basic and diluted) BREM(EXARES)
(RMB cents per share) (BRARKED) 10.78 13.37
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33

B R R =T

DIVIDENDS 33

Dividend of HKD0.04 per share (amounting to HKD 102,756,000, equivalent to
RMB81,074,000 based on the exchange rate at the payment date of such dividend)
was declared and paid in 2015 in respect of the year ended 3| December
2014 (2014: dividend of HKDO0.08 per share (amounting to HKD205,51 1,000,
equivalent to RMB162,682,000 based on the exchange rate at the payment date
of such dividend) was declared and paid in 2014 in respect of the year ended 3|
December 2013). A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
of HKDO.04 per share, which is equivalent to a total dividend of approximately
RMB86,058,000 is to be proposed at the annual general meeting of the Company.

These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

KRE
—HFERRENBEE=ZT—N
F+ZA=+—HLEFERBEAEBR
B T4 (GE 102,756,000 T * SRR
ZRENENTRBENERTENA
R #81,074000L ) (ZF—MEF: =
Z-HFERMENBEE-ZS—=F
TZA=+—BUEFERERBRE
T8l (3£ 205,511,000 7T * FRNZ
BRENERNHANEZFENAR
% 162,682,0007C ) © A2 Al KR E
BERSELRBREBE-_ZT—R1F
+tZA=+—HLEFENRE  FK
BBTAL  FRRNREEEHRAR
% 86,058,000 7T © Lt FE AR S 30 K = Bt
RZEEIREL ©

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2015 2014
—F-1% —F-mF
RMB'000 RMB000

AR® TR ARETTT

Proposed final dividend of HKD0.04 BEARPRSFRAT AU
(2014: HKDO0.04) per share (ZZ—IF : Br4l) 86,058 81,074
The Company's subsidiaries will declare sufficient dividends to the Company to ARRNME AR BRAAREDIKE
enable the Company to pay dividends to its shareholders. HERE - BARAEUAEERRE X
R



CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

34

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

RETHMEENRSE

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLEFE

2015 2014
—®-IfF —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Profit before income tax BR 15 5 B AR 374,644 465,478
Adjustments for: A
Amortisation of intangible assets and land use rights B EE R AR 22,810 22810
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 8) ME - BB KREITE (FHEE8) 53,674 51,591
Net foreign exchange losses (Note 30) B 5 &5 1805 %8 (MT 31 30) 5,683 | 681
Deferred revenue credited to income statement ERMEROBETHA (11,785) (10,179)
Interest costs/(income), net FIERAE/ (WA) - F58 4249 (5,894)
Share of profit of associates (Note 12) B R Ela N (MEE 12) (21,332) (1,263)
Gain on disposal of AFS (Note 27) HEAHHESREE
g (T 27) (6,732) (17,850)
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESHHAINEE BT 421,211 506,374
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,207 (11234)
Decrease in trade receivables JEWE 5 50R 127,018 121,148
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments A FRIE K E A e LUK
and other receivables (), B (22,636) 5,178
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payable ERESRORD) /10 (44,513) 44574
Decrease in accruals and other payables TRE A K HE MR TR (7,345) (43557)
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred revenue and EREBARFBRE PR
advance received from customers R,/ 10 (17,484) 44,131
Cash generated from operations RETHMELENRE 449,044 666,614
Significant non-cash transaction EXKRERS

During the year, a trade receivable of RMB39,019,000 from a third party were

offset against trade payable for the same amount to the same third party based on

the settlement agreement between the Group and the third party.

During the year, amounts due from third parties of RMB75,070,000 were offset

against amounts due to related parties for the same amount based on the

settlement agreements among the Group, the third parties and the related parties.

FR - BRBEAEBEZE=FHZHEHN
LERE BR—EBE=ZFNERE
SHARK39019000 THENZE=

HTHRESEENENE SRR -

TR REAKE 3
ZRENEEHE BRE=JTHEA
K 75,070,000 7T B FE 1 BA R 7T MO A &

SRFAMEH -

=7 L

Annual Report & %3 ¢ 2015

79



TIBET WATER RESOURCES LTD. ¢ #RKERERA A

180
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e MR RRME

35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@)  Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any material

capital commitments.

(b)  Operating lease commitments
The Group leases offices and plant under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases were as follows:

35

ARENRAEE

(@) BRMEE
RZE—RAFRZT—WF+=
A=+—H AEEVEFFNE
RE ARG o

(b) REHEAR
AEERBEAIBUEN KL
MAPRERME « KTERA
BURRETHER THARKRIER
S

As at 3| December

W+=A=+-8
2015 2014
—E-FE —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR ARBETT

No later than | year | AR 3,485 6378
Later than | year and no later than 5 years | =54 2,454 9213
5,939 15,591




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

35

36

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 35
(c)  Contingent liabilities
The Group provided a financial guarantee to an associate amounting to
RMB260,000,000 as at 3|1 December 2015 (31 December 2014: nil) (Note
3.1). The guarantee was provided for a bank borrowing of the associate with
the principal amount of RMB240,000,000, the period of the guarantee is
from 20 July 2015 to 20 July 2017.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are

also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang Peter Jian, the “Controlling
Shareholder”.

EHRNSIREEE)

() HAREE
RZZE—AF+=ZA=+—8H"
AEBYH-—FBEARRMRTA
R # 260,000,000 7T K B 75 1& (7
(Z2—mFE+ZRA=+—8:
&) ZEREAZHE RAAR
% A A K #240,000,000 7T # iR
TTERMRE - EERBARKEZ
Z-RF+tAZTHREZZ—+t
F+A=+H-

BREA X%

Bl —IERE IS S — TR B H R
BREERRBMEAZENAL -
HEZHERIRE @B

AEEREREE(BRER)BL
25 -
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Transactions with related parties

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

36 BBARZ(E)

(@)

REBLTNRS

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2015 2014
—2-1F —FNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Purchase of goods (i) REEY()
— Entities under common control —XA—FHNER 39 741
Lease expenses (i) MEEM (i)
— An entity controlled by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace, =~ —RARRIAIEFE o —F 4%
the former Chairman of the Company THINE S — 198
Revenue from leasing of a production line MEFERERA
— An associate (i) — — B E 2] (i) 2,051 342
Revenue from selling of bottle preforms and caps  $H & R FE R 2 K UA
— An associate (i) —— R E 2] (i) 49,746 1,893
Revenue from providing consulting services R AREHBA
— An associate (i) — —EEEE 2 A (i) — 83
Settlement of trade and other receivables JELS B 55 0 R L e LK ) 1 8
— An associate (i) — — B E 2] (i) 73,571 —
Prepayment for purchase of bottle EREBHRAE MR & O TR R
preforms and caps
— An associate (i) — —[EEE QA (i) 16,429 —
Net settlement of payables to third parties on
behalf of related parties REBH T FZNE = OERT
— An associate and an entity under ——BE QAN —RAXRF—#&
common control (iv) HHEER (v) 75,070 =
Financial guarantee IS HER
——[EIBE & R A (iif) 260,000 —

— An associate (iii)
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BRI

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

@

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

0

(i)

)

Goods were bought from an entity controlled by the Controlling

Shareholder based on agreed terms between both parties.

Lease expenses were from the leasing fee of vehicle from an entity
controlled by the former Chairman of the Company, who resigned
from the Board in 2015, based on agreed terms between both

parties. There was no such transaction in 2015.

These were the transactions between the Group and Highland
Natural Water, an associate of the Group. The transactions were

based on agreed terms between both parties.

These were transactions with Highland Natural Water and an entity
controlled by the Controlling Shareholder based on agreed terms
among all parties, to facilitate Highland Natural Water and the entity
controlled by the controlling shareholder to settle their payables to

third parties.

Balance with a related party

The balance with a related party is as follows:

36

BBAIRS (&)

(@)

(b)

REBLTNRS

(iif)

(iv)

(%)
SYEREBEETOHT K

AR IR R Pl 1) B B8
Tm,ﬁ\%°

HEERARERARBIE
ETNBERKAE=Z
—hECRESCEIN
ARAIGIERESHNER

MABHREE £=F
—AFWEZERS

0/

" 7

BUERAEEEFRRA
KAEEMHEERT) 2
MRS ZERHNE
RETHE 5 1 E B {0

""J}::

B R RIB R T RO E IR
o

3

B — [ g P AR AR SR 1%
HNERBANSRRAAKZ
BNRS ZXHRET
BIRRAKFZERRE
THONEBRE= AN
HERZR o

BB AR
SRR T RN T

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—-H
2015 2014
—E-EF —ET-m%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT
Other receivables HAh & W R
— An associate - Highland Natural Water (Note 16) — Bt & /X 8] — =5 R K A 7K
(MEE 16) 21,321 2,134
This balance represents amounts due from Highland Natural Water. They ZAERERERRAKKE
were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. HRBRERA  BS fﬂ—fﬂﬂ &3
WBEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

36

37

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)  Key management compensation

The compensation paid/payable to key management is shown below:

36

BBAIRS (&)

() FEEEASHH:
BEf/ BN EEEE A SR
E5IF

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2015 2014
—F-1% —F-mF
RMB'000 RMB000

AR® TR ARETTT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits %% & E 58 Hi(E B & F

9,601 8513

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

On 16 December 2015, the Group issued an offer letter to China Distribution and
Logistics Company Ltd. (“China Distribution”), a third party distributor, to grant
share options of 25,200,000 ordinary shares of the Company to China Distribution
at the exercise price of HKD3.00 per share. On 29 December 2015, China
Distribution accepted the above offer. Details of the share options granted were

set out below:

() Exercise price of share options granted: HKD3.00
(i) Number of share options granted: 25,200,000

(i) Validity period of the share options: from | January 2016 to 3| December
2025

(iv)  Vesting conditions:

The vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the achievement
of the prescribed sale and performance targets by China Distribution within

three years commencing from | January 2016.

No services relating to the above share options were provided by China

Distribution to the Group for the year ended 3| December 2015.

37

% 0 B 4815
R-ZZB—RE+-A+X B A&£H
M—EE=ZFTDHEE—PELERR
RE([hELEDZEHBOE K
BRET30MAPELEREARRA
25,200,000 [ E @R A EERIE - R_-F
—hFETZAZTNAB  fRESEE
XA ERES - RENBERESBD
TXAH

() BHBRENITER  BT3.00
(i) BHEEMRIESE : 25,200,000
(i) BRENERY: BT X~F

—A—HBZ-ZE-_R%+=-A
=+-—8

(v) BHBBMY:

BERENFEBXTELERAZ
Z-A"F-H-BRBN=FA
EREEHE REME RE G
MR

BE_Z-RAFt_A=t—HLF
B pECRYRAAEERMEEE
AL B RS -
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BRI

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 22 January 2016, the Group entered into Subscription Agreement with Tyee
Capital Management (Cayman) Limited (“Investor”), a company incorporated
in Cayman lIslands, whereby the Group agreed to issue and the Investor
agreed to subscribe convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HKD600,000,000, provided that certain precedent conditions are met. The
convertible bonds will mature on the third anniversary date from the issue date of
the convertible bonds and at the interest rate of 6.00% per annum. The Investor is
entitled to convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at the price of
HKD4.00 per share. Assuming full conversion of the convertible bonds at the price
of HKD4.00 per share, the convertible bonds will be converted into 150,000,000
ordinary shares, representing approximately 5.84% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company and approximately 5.52% of the issued share capital of the

Company as enlarged by the issuance of the conversion shares.

As of the date of these financial statements, the convertible bonds have not yet

been issued by the Group.

38

EERERAMEER

RZE—RF—A=-+=-H A£E
Bl Tyee Capital Management (Cayman)
Limited ([ & & ) (—RRFASHEST
BRI RIE R - Bt -
AEERERTMREERERBER
& #8 §8600,000,000 % 7T &) A] AR &
% FHMERAE600%  FIEH BB
BHRBETHBE=EAFAZEX#
REMRETRARGE REZEGER
BRA0BTHERKBEFRBRAR
RAILEARK - RERER400ETH
ERBHERITRRES  TBRKRE
% % ] 82 4% /5 150,000,000 A% & 3@ AL -
BARRAIRE B BEITIRAK) 5.84% KA
RAKBTERROBANS IR
ZR495.52% °

@E%%WW%%H%’$%@%*
BIORS A BRES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

39

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

39 AAFAEEREBERKMHERY

ARARAEERER

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
Note 2015 2014
P aE —B-If —T—mEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFIT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RRIRE — =
Loans to subsidiaries EXTHBAR 1,176,030 1,103,853
1,176,030 [,103,853
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 208,769 320,145
Prepayment AR FIE 1,849 542
Other receivables H e Uk — 4426
210,618 325,113
Total assets wmEE 1,386,648 1,428,966




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

39

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

39 AAFAEEREBERKMHERY

(CONTINUED) ()
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) FRTEERER(E
As at 3|1 December
W+=A=+-H
Note 2015 2014
BT —E-1fE —E-mE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Equity and liabilities EERkEE
Equity attributable to owners of ERAEEEAELESR
the Company
Share capital (L& 21,363 21,363
Share premium A7 i 1B 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves & @) 8,037 (63,116)
Retained earnings Bk () 9% 12,296
Total equity ERBHE 1,236,325 1,177,372
Liabilities afF
Current liabilities ik I=R
Other payables H A FERT R 150,323 251,594
Total liabilities BEAE 150,323 251,594
Total equity and liabilities REREEARE 1,386,648 1,428,966

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 24

March 2016 and was signed on its behalf.

FU Lin {33
Director %

LIU Chen 818
Director 2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

39

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

@

Reserve movement of the Company

39

ARAREBERBERRAAERE

(&)

() ADERHESE

Retained

earnings Other reserves

BEkE HivE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT
At | January 2014 R-E—mE—F—B 38,695 (67247)
Profit for the year FEFE 136,283 —
Dividends paid BERRE (162,682) —

Currency translation differences INEEER — 4,131
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-mOE+=A=+—H 12,296 (63,116)
At | January 2015 R-E—RE—F—H 12,29 63116)
Profit for the year FENHE 68,874 —
Dividends paid BERRE (81,074) —
Currency translation differences INEEER — 71,153
At 31 December 2015 R=Z2-A%+=A=+-H 96 8,037




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRRHE

40  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 ESEEIRER
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A EERESTHRAEME
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive for the year REZLRBEATBABEHEC=Z
ended 31 December 2015 is set out below: —AF+-A=+—HIFEN

FEIIMT -

Employer’s
contribution

Discretionary  to a benefits

Salary bonuses scheme Total
EE@ER
e 1AL B gt
Name ®H RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR AR®TxR

Mr. Yu Yiping, Wallace (i) a—FEE() 1,009 — 12 1,021
Mr. Fu Lin (ii) IS A (i) 1,042 — — 1,042
Mr. Yue Zhigiang EEmxs 1,042 — — 1,042
Ms. Mu Chunhua (ii) BBEE (i) 267 — — 267
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong FRIT 7+ 401 — — 401
Mr. Liu Chen ZREE 779 3 14 809
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen EREEE 838 — — 838
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway EN 385 — — 385
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin RIS 385 — — 385
Mr. Wong Hak Kun TRELE 1,202 — 16 1,218
7,350 16 4 7,408

(i)  Resigned from the Board on 6 October 2015. (y RZZE—AFE+ASAEEBE

MEEGREIE
(i)~ Mr. FuLinis the director and also the chief executive of the Company (i) HMHEER-T-—RFR
for both 2015 and 2014, —E-EERELARAE

ENRSITBAS

(i)  Resigned from the Board on 29 August 2015. iy RZE-—HEFNAZTAH
HERESSEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE BB ERR M

40

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(A)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive for the year

ended 3| December 2014 is set out below:

40

EEENRERE)

(A)

EERBETBRAEME(E)
REERERITHRABHE-Z
—ME+ZA=+—BLFEN
FEIIMT -

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary  to a benefits

Name "4 Salary bonuses scheme Total
EEXREF

e MIETEA BE SN a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

AREFT ARBTT AR¥TT AREFT

Mr. Yu Yiping, Wallace aI— k4L 1,307 — I3 1,320
Mr. Fu Lin (D Vit 1,030 — — 1,030
Mr. Yue Zhigiang EEmxs 1,030 — — 1,030
Ms. Mu Chunhua BEELL 396 — — 396
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZET 7+ 396 — — 396
Mr. Liu Chen 2REE 770 62 13 845
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen EREEE 380 — — 380
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway N 380 — — 380
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin RIS 380 — — 380
Mr. Wong Hak Kun (iv) TR#EE 77 — — 77
6,146 62 26 6,234

(v)  Appointed on 8 December 2014.

There was no remuneration, housing allowance, or estimated money value

of other benefits during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

vy RZZE—DmE+=ZANA
EBZE-

BE-_ZT-hFR-_T-—OF
TZA=+t—HLEFE  BEL
fAIEH - EERMFEMEN
fhEt e EE -
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B R R R B =T

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(B)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 3| December 2015, no retirement benefits operated
by the Group were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to or receivable
by a director in respect of his services as a director or other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiaries (2014 nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2015, no payments or benefits in
respect of termination of director’s services were paid or made, directly or

indirectly, to or receivable by a director; nor are any payable (2014: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

During the year ended 3| December 2015, no consideration was provided
to or receivable by third parties for making available director’s services (2014

nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of directors,

controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities (2014 nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
group's business to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2014: nil).

40

EEENRERE)

(B)

FHE AR
#E-T-FF+-A=t-H
LEE - BEARSEERES
TSR A B R
R TERE RSN ERA
ARSEKBAT 2 EHERY
HAB R MR SR R KRR
(—E-m&E: )

EF4LER
BE-F-RET-A=T-F
RS BEREERE LS
B MR M E SRS
AR - BN
B RAE A (=%~
£ 3)

RESREQE=LRHENKE

BE-ZT-Aft-A=t—H
HEE Iﬂliiﬁﬁﬁﬁ_
HRERE B TERKR
B(—T2—HmF:F)-

ﬁﬁu§$*§$zﬁﬁﬂiﬂ
FRAEERASRANER
EXREMXENER
BENES - é%Zx?ﬂ%.
FAEERAXHEANER
%Yﬁ@%%_ﬁfmii
Z) o

A

EERRS  ZHHASHNEX
E
RERSRFREMERE - HE
FEARBERINT BAARRE
EERETRAEANES(TH
ERSAR)NEREXHER
MWEARS  ZHRAH(ZE
—mEF:F) -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

L FEHBEHME

For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
%1% —T W —F =% —FT_F —F—F
Profitability data (RMB million) BEREE
(AE®EBER)

Revenue Y as 832 773 787 682 633
Gross profit EH 502 484 576 555 499
Operating profit 1L E 363 460 529 479 44|
Profit for the year FEFNE 323 385 461 411 373
Profitability data (%) BFIEIE (%)
Gross profit margin EFIE 60% 63% 73% 81% 79%
Operating profit margin REMEE 44% 60% 67% 70% 70%
Net profit margin Je oy P 39% 50% 59% 60% 59%
Retum on total shareholders’ equity PR SR 2 4B FE B # K 10% 13% 1 7% 19% 20%
Assets and liabilities data EEHEEHE

(RMB million) (AR®BETR)
Non-current assets FRPEE 2,635 2215 1,661 915 301
Current assets mEEE 1,025 1221 1,596 1,729 1,736
Current liabilities REEE 403 327 455 412 161
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 60 158 72 30 2
Equity attributable to owners RRAHEE AELER

of the Company 2,878 2,678 2497 2,202 1,854
Assets and Working Capital data EENRBESHE
Current assets ratios MEEELE 28% 36% 49% 65% 85%
Gearing ratios ERBELE 5.89% 6.08% 6.69% — —
Note: Bt -

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PBEG MBS ERRE WBRRO—H -
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